
Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 

Wednesday, May 10, 2017 
7:00 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the April 26, 2017 Regular Meeting.

2. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for April 2017.

3. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Supporting an Application for One Bay Area Grant 2 (OBAG 2) for
Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC) Program.

4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving First Amendment to Comprehensive Agreement with the
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District.

PUBLIC HEARING 

5. GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE WORK PLAN

a. Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution of the Town of Colma to Approve a Workplan to
Develop a Green Infrastructure Plan in Accordance with Provision C.3.J of the Municipal
Regional Permit, and Finding the Action to be Exempt from Environmental Review Pursuant
to CEQA Guidelines 15061(B)(3) and 15306.

b. Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending Subchapter 1.15 of the Colma
Administrative Code to Include Green Infrastructure, and Finding the Action to be Exempt
from Environmental Review Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 15301(C), 15302, and 15303.



Page 2 of 2 

NEW BUSINESS 

6. SECOND AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH KIRK STRATTON
Consider: Motion to Adopt Resolution Approving Second Amendment to Employment Contract 
with Kirk Stratton.

7. THIRD AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH SEAN RABÉ

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving Third Amendment to Employment Contract
with Sean Rabé.

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council 

City Manager 

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1188 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


Page 1 of 4 

 MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, April 26, 2017 

7:00 p.m.  

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Helen Fisicaro called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 7:05 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Council 
Members Joanne F. del Rosario, John Irish Goodwin and Diana Colvin were all present. 

Staff Present – City Manager Sean Rabé, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Administrative 
Services Director Brian Dossey, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, Police Commander 
Sherwin Lum, City Planner Michael Laughlin, City Clerk Caitlin Corley and Assistant Planner 
Jonathan Kwan were in attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Fisicaro asked if there were any proposed changes to the agenda. None were 
requested. The Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action:  Council Member del Rosario moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded 
by Vice Mayor Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  
Diana Colvin  

5 0 

PRESENTATION 

 Recreation Coordinator Cynthia Morquecho introduced New Facility Attendant Itzel Diaz

 Police Commander Sherwin Lum swore in Officer Daivy Ly.

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Fisicaro opened the public comment period at 7:23 p.m. and seeing no one come 
forward to speak, she closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

3. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the April 12, 2017 Regular Meeting.

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to approve the Consent Calendar item #3; the
motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Gonzalez and carried by the following vote:

Item #1



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

PUBLIC HEARING 

4. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT – ORANGE THEORY 

Assistant Planner Jonathan Kwan presented the staff report.  Mayor Fisicaro opened the 
public comment period at 7:27 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed 
the public hearing. Council discussion followed.  

Action: Council Member Goodwin moved to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Conditional Use 
Permit to Allow a 3,185 Square Foot Fitness Facility with Approximately 300 Square Feet of 
Retail Space Located at 51 Colma Boulevard (APN: 011-370-180) Pursuant to CEQA 
Guideline 15301, Class 1(A); the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and 
carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

NEW BUSINESS 

5. FY 2017-18 WATER CONSERVATION INCENTIVE PROGRAM 
Director of Public Works Brad Donohue presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro opened 
the public comment period at 7:27 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she 
closed the public hearing. Council discussion followed. City Attorney Christopher Diaz noted 
a correction to section 2(a), striking the reference to the drought.  

Action: Vice Mayor Colvin moved to Adopt a Resolution Establishing the Authorized Subsidy 
at $85,000 for the Water Conservation Incentive Program in Fiscal Year 2017-18, with the 
requested changes; the motion was seconded by Council Member Colvin and carried by the 
following vote: 

  



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

STUDY SESSION 

6. PRELIMINARY FY 2017-18 BUDGET AND FINANCIAL PLAN 

City Manager Sean Rabé presented the staff report.  Mayor Fisicaro opened the public 
comment period at 7:59 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed.  

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting. 

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular City Council Meetings will be on Wednesday, May 10, 2017 at 7:00 p.m.  
and Wednesday, May 24, 2017 at 7:00 p.m.   

REPORTS 

Helen Fisicaro 
 Small Business Week Vignette at Steak and Shake, 4/17 
 Small Business Week Vignette at Allstate, 4/18 
 Serramonte Ford Groundbreaking, 4/19 
 Are You Ready Training, 4/19 
 Business to Business, 4/20 
 Progress Seminar, 4/21-4/23 
 
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez  
 Serramonte Ford Groundbreaking, 4/19 
 
Joanne F. del Rosario 
 Small Business Week Vignette at Hamptons Inn, 4/19 
 
Diana Colvin 
 Serramonte Ford Groundbreaking, 4/19 

City Manager Sean Rabé gave a report on the following topics: 

• Kaiser Permanente's $2,000.00 donation towards the installation of a Bike Fix-It Station 
has been approved. We’ll be holding a ribbon-cutting and dedication soon.  

• Stand Up For Kids has dropped off food collection barrels at the PD, Sterling Park, and 
the Community Center and will be collecting food donations from then through the end 
of May.   



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

• Officer Jay Rossett will be graduating from Inner Perspectives next month and Officer 
Daniel Mendoza has been nominated for this year’s MADD award for the most DUI 
arrests for last year. 

ADJOURNMENT AND CLOSE IN MEMORY  

The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Fisicaro at 8:18 p.m. in memory of Thomas O’Brien, 
brother of Town employee Jeanne O’Brien and Paul C. Van Iderstine, Former Millbrae Mayor. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 



Item #2















































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report for Resolution of Local Support – TLC Program  Page 1 of 3 
April 26, 2017 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brad Donohue, Public Works Director 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: April 26, 2017 

SUBJECT: OBAG 2, Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC) Program 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING AN APPLICATION FOR ONE BAY AREA GRANT 2 (OBAG 2) FOR 
TRANSPORTATION FOR LIVABLE COMMUNITIES (TLC) PROGRAM 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The attached Resolution of Local Support authorizes the filing of an application for funding 
assigned to MTC, committing any necessary matching funds, and stating assurance to complete 
the project. This Resolution supersedes Resolution No. 2016-51, previously adopted on 
November 9, 2016 for the same project under LSR application.   

The Town has designated a project on Mission Road where the OBAG 2 grant funding would be 
expensed. The Mission Road district harbors several residential communities on the south end 
of the roadway (Verano HOA Complex and several single-family dwellings) and a soon to be 
Veterans Housing complex on the North end of the roadway. Mission Road is also home to 
several commercial businesses, (Cemetery, flower shops, tavern and auto related businesses). 
Mission Road being in close proximity to BART and the area being designated as   a Priority 
Development Area (PDA), Staff believes that the Mission Road corridor and the need to improve 
pedestrian, bicycle, accessibility and safety features along the roadway is essential in keeping 
the area vibrant accessible and safe for vehicles, pedestrians, bicyclists who live, work and visit 
the area. The $625,000 combined with the Town’s local match will deliver to the Mission Road 
District these much-needed improvements.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

The estimated cost of engineering design and construction for the improvements to Mission 
Road is estimated to be in the range of $1,375,000. To help supplement the overall cost for the 
Mission Road improvements, the Town of Colma applied for the Transportation for Livable 
Communities (TLC) Program and submitted a grant application on November 18, 2016. The 
C/CAG Board approved Town’s TLC project on March 9, 2017 and recommended the project 

Item #3



Staff Report for Resolution of Local Support – TLC Program  Page 2 of 3 
April 26, 2017 

application to MTC for funding. If MTC approves our use of the TLC fund, it would decrease the 
estimated $1,375,000 financial commitment to improve Mission Road by $525,000. 
 
If the TLC Grant is accepted and funded, the Town’s estimated funding plan for the Mission 
Road Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvement project is as follows: 
 

• Proposed CIP Allocation for FY 18-19 (Local Match)  $    750,000 
• TLC Grant       $    525,000 
• LSR Grant (Already approved)    $    100,000 

Estimated Project Total   $ 1,375,000 
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS 

Established in 2012, the One Bay Area Grant program (OBAG) is a grant program that solicits 
federal funding to maintain Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) commitments to 
regional transportation priorities while also advancing the Bay Area's land-use and housing 
goals. 

On November 18, 2015, MTC adopted the funding and policy framework for the second round 
of the One Bay Area Grant 2 (OBAG 2) to fund eligible projects for the next five years, from 
2017-18 through 2021-22. The OBAG 2 program is divided into a Regional Program, managed 
by MTC, and County Program, managed by the nine Bay Area Congestion Management 
Agencies (CMAs).  

The TLC County Program (a component of OBAG 2) is a transportation funding program that 
aims to fund a wide range improvements and facilities that support and promote alternative 
transportation modes rather than the single-occupant automobile. The program is also intended 
to support community based transportation projects that will reduce air pollution in downtown 
areas, commercial cores, high-density neighborhoods, and transit corridors. 

On November 18, 2016, the Town submitted an application to the City/County Association of 
Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG) for Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC) 
project funding under Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) One Bay Area Grant 2 
(OBAG 2) Program.    

On March 9, 2017, C/CAG Board approved the Town’s TLC application for $525,000 grant fund. 
This grant will be combined with the $100,000 grant fund that has been allocated to the Town 
under Local Streets and Roads (LSR) OBAG 2 Program. C/CAG are currently collecting the 
project information to be transmitted to MTC in May 2017 before starting the programming 
process of this project for total combined grant funding of $625,000.  

Council Adopted Values 
 
The Mission Road Improvement Project will provide elements of safety for bicyclist, pedestrians 
and provide equal accessibility for those with disabilities that travel through the Mission Road 
District.  Approval of the proposed  resolution is the Responsible action because the Council 
has considered the financial impact of the project, while improving the accessibility and safety 
features on and along Mission Road. 
 



Staff Report for Resolution of Local Support – TLC Program  Page 3 of 3 
April 26, 2017 

Sustainability Impact 

This resolution in support for the Mission Road Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvements - Funding 
Application to the C/CAG Authority is consistent with the Town’s sustainability goals and 
Complete Streets and Green Streets Program goals. 
 
ALTERNATATIVES 
 
The City Council could choose to not accept the TLC Grant Funding. Doing so is not 
recommended, however, because the Town would lose the $525,000 grant to assist with the 
Mission Road Improvements.  
 
CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution supporting an application for One Bay 
Area Grant 2 (OBAG 2) for Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC) and the Town’s 
allocation of the grant funding. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution of Local Support for TLC Application  
B. Resolution No. 2016-51 adopted for this project for LSR Application 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res 2017-## Application for MTC Funding Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION OF LOCAL SUPPORT 
AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR FUNDING ASSIGNED TO MTC 

AND COMMITTING ANY NECESSARY MATCHING FUNDS AND STATING  
ASSURANCE TO COMPLETE THE PROJECT 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background and Findings.

(a) Town of Colma (herein referred to as APPLICANT) is submitting an application to the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for $625,000 in funding assigned to MTC for 
programming discretion, which includes federal funding administered by the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) and federal or state funding administered by the California 
Transportation Commission (CTC) such as Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STP) 
funding, Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) funding, 
Transportation Alternatives (TA) set-aside/Active Transportation Program (ATP) funding, and 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) funding (herein collectively referred to 
as REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING) for the  Mission Road Bicycle & Pedestrian 
Improvements Project (herein referred to as PROJECT) for the Transportation for Livable 
Communities (TLC) Program (herein referred to as PROGRAM); and 

(b) The United States Congress from time to time enacts and amends legislation to provide 
funding for various transportation needs and programs, (collectively, the FEDERAL 
TRANSPORTATION ACT) including, but not limited to the Surface Transportation Block Grant 
Program (STP) (23 U.S.C. § 133), the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement 
Program (CMAQ) (23 U.S.C. § 149) and the Transportation Alternatives (TA) set-aside (23 
U.S.C. § 133); and 

(c) State statutes, including California Streets and Highways Code §182.6, §182.7, and 
§2381(a)(1), and California Government Code §14527, provide various funding programs for
the programming discretion of the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) and the Regional 
Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA); and 

(d) Pursuant to the FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ACT, and any regulations promulgated 
thereunder, eligible project sponsors wishing to receive federal or state funds for a regionally-
significant project shall submit an application first with the appropriate MPO, or RTPA, as 
applicable, for review and inclusion in the federal Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); 
and 

(e) MTC is the MPO and RTPA for the nine counties of the San Francisco Bay region; and 

(f) MTC has adopted a Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution No. 3606, 
revised) that sets out procedures governing the application and use of REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 

(g) APPLICANT is an eligible sponsor for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 

Attachment A



Res 2017-## Application for MTC Funding   Page 2 of 4   

(h) As part of the application for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING, MTC requires a 
resolution adopted by the responsible implementing agency stating the following: 

(i) the commitment of any required matching funds; and 

(ii) that the sponsor understands that the REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING is 
fixed at the programmed amount, and therefore any cost increase cannot be expected to be 
funded with additional REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 

(iii) that the PROJECT will comply with the procedures, delivery milestones and 
funding deadlines specified in the Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution 
No. 3606, revised); and 

(iv) the assurance of the sponsor to complete the PROJECT as described in the 
application, subject to environmental clearance, and if approved, as included in MTC's federal 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

(v) that the PROJECT will have adequate staffing resources to deliver and complete 
the PROJECT within the schedule submitted with the project application; and 

(vi) that the PROJECT will comply with all project-specific requirements as set forth in 
the PROGRAM; and 

(vii) that APPLICANT has assigned, and will maintain a single point of contact for all 
FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation projects to coordinate within the agency and with the 
respective Congestion Management Agency (CMA), MTC, Caltrans, FHWA, and CTC on all 
communications, inquires or issues that may arise during the federal programming and delivery 
process for all FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation and transit projects implemented by 
APPLICANT; and 

(i) APPLICANT is authorized to submit an application for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY 
FUNDING for the PROJECT; and 

(j) There is no legal impediment to APPLICANT making applications for the funds; and 

(k) There is no pending or threatened litigation that might in any way adversely affect the 
proposed PROJECT, or the ability of APPLICANT to deliver such PROJECT; and 

(l) APPLICANT authorizes its Executive Director, General Manager, or designee to execute 
and file an application with MTC for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT as 
referenced in this resolution; and 

(m) MTC requires that a copy of this resolution be transmitted to the MTC in conjunction 
with the filing of the application. 

2. Order. 

(a) With the adoption of this Resolution, the APPLICANT is authorized to execute and file an 
application for funding for the PROJECT for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING under the 
FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ACT or continued funding; and: 



Res 2017-## Application for MTC Funding   Page 3 of 4   

(i) The APPLICANT will provide any required matching funds;  

(ii) APPLICANT understands that the REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the 
project is fixed at the MTC approved programmed amount, and that any cost increases must be 
funded by the APPLICANT from other funds, and that APPLICANT does not expect any cost 
increases to be funded with additional REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING;  

(iii) APPLICANT understands the funding deadlines associated with these funds and 
will comply with the provisions and requirements of the Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy 
(MTC Resolution No. 3606, revised) and APPLICANT has, and will retain the expertise, 
knowledge and resources necessary to deliver federally-funded transportation and transit 
projects, and has assigned, and will maintain a single point of contact for all FHWA- and CTC-
funded transportation projects to coordinate within the agency and with the respective 
Congestion Management Agency (CMA), MTC, Caltrans, FHWA, and CTC on all communications, 
inquires or issues that may arise during the federal programming and delivery process for all 
FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation and transit projects implemented by APPLICANT;  

(iv) the PROJECT will be implemented as described in the complete application and in 
this resolution, subject to environmental clearance, and, if approved, for the amount approved 
by MTC and programmed in the federal TIP;  

(v) APPLICANT has reviewed the PROJECT and has adequate staffing resources to 
deliver and complete the PROJECT within the schedule submitted with the project application;  

(vi) the PROJECT will comply with the requirements as set forth in MTC programming 
guidelines and project selection procedures for the PROGRAM;  

(vii) in the case of a transit project, APPLICANT agrees to comply with the 
requirements of MTC’s Transit Coordination Implementation Plan as set forth in MTC Resolution 
No. 3866, revised;  

(viii) in the case of a highway project, APPLICANT agrees to comply with the 
requirements of MTC’s Traffic Operations System (TOS) Policy as set forth in MTC Resolution 
No. 4104;  

(ix) in the case of an RTIP project, PROJECT is included in a local congestion 
management plan, or is consistent with the capital improvement program adopted pursuant to 
MTC’s funding agreement with the countywide transportation agency;  

(x) APPLICANT is an eligible sponsor of REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING 
funded projects; and be it further 

(xi) APPLICANT is authorized to submit an application for REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT;  

(xii) there is no legal impediment to APPLICANT making applications for the funds;  

(xiii) there is no pending or threatened litigation that might in any way adversely 
affect the proposed PROJECT, or the ability of APPLICANT to deliver such PROJECT;  



Res 2017-## Application for MTC Funding   Page 4 of 4   

(xiv) APPLICANT authorizes its Executive Director, General Manager, City Manager, or 
designee to execute and file an application with MTC for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING 
for the PROJECT as referenced in this resolution;  

(xv) a copy of this resolution will be transmitted to the MTC in conjunction with the 
filing of the application; and  

(xvi) the MTC is requested to support the application for the PROJECT described in the 
resolution, and if approved, to include the PROJECT in MTC's federal TIP upon submittal by the 
project sponsor for TIP programming. 

3. Supersedes. 

(a) This resolution shall supersede Resolution No. 2016-51, previously adopted for this  
project, and Resolution No. 2016-51 shall have no further force and effect after the City 
Council’s adoption of this resolution. 

* * * * * * 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on _______, 2017 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel Gonzalez        

Joanne del Rosario       

Diana Colvin      

John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 

 

 



Attachment B









Staff Report First Amendment to BART Comprehensive Agreement  Page 1 of 4 
25977.00100\29627635.1

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

Brad Donohue, Public Works Director 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: May 10, 2017 

SUBJECT: First Amendment to BART Comprehensive Agreement 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING FIRST AMENDMENT TO COMPREHENSIVE AGREEMENT WITH 
THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, also known as BART, and the Town of Colma 
entered into a Comprehensive Agreement dated November 4, 1998 (“Agreement”) relating to 
the extension of BART’s tracks south of Colma to the San Francisco International Airport and 
Millbrae.  The District and the Town have negotiated and desire to enter into a First 
Amendment, amending the Agreement to provide: 

1. payment to the Town in the amount of $81,705.00 for the determined value of the
decline in pavement condition of the Town’s streets attributed to BART construction, as
specified in the Agreement;

2. written acceptance by the Town of certain Project Features completed by 2002, as
required by the Agreement; and

3. options for the Town’s use of a certain portion of BART’s permanent right-of-way for
merchant parking.

FISCAL IMPACT 

The First Amendment provides that the Town will receive payment in the amount of 
$81,705.00, as the dollar amount reflecting the decline in pavement conditions that occurred to 
the Town’s streets due to construction by BART that was completed in 2002.  No other fiscal 
impact will occur.   

Item #4



Staff Report First Amendment to BART Comprehensive Agreement  Page 2 of 4 
25977.00100\29627635.1  
 

BACKGROUND 

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, also known as BART or District, and the 
Town of Colma entered into a Comprehensive Agreement on November 4, 1998 (“Agreement”) 
relating to the extension of BART’s tracks south from Colma to the San Francisco International 
Airport and Millbrae (“Project”) within the Town limits.  The Agreement set forth, among other 
things, procedures regarding design and construction options, protecting in place and/or 
relocating certain Town-owned facilities and utilities, and use of Town’s streets for hauling 
operations during construction.  The Agreement and the Project provided for the following: 

• Certain Town streets were used for hauling operations during construction of the Project 
provided that BART perform pre-construction and post-construction pavement surveys in 
accordance with the December 1988 Metropolitan Transportation Commission Pavement 
Management System Users Guide (“MTC PCI Index”) to determine and pay the Town 
the dollar amount reflecting the decline in the pavement condition of the Town’s streets.  
In 2002, BART determined that the value of the pavement condition decline to Town 
streets attributable to construction of the Project was Eighty-One Thousand Seven 
Hundred Five Dollars ($81,705.00).   

• Section 9 of the Agreement provided that the Town accept completed Project features, 
as described in Section 6 of the Agreement, once it has been determined that the work 
has been performed in accordance with the Contract Documents (“Project Features”).  
Pursuant to Section 9 of the Agreement, BART provided notice to the Town in July 2002 
and February 2004 of the completion of all Project Features described in Section 6 of the 
Agreement.  The Town has utilized these Project Features but has not yet provided 
written acceptance of the Project Features. 

• BART agreed to allow an option to use, after construction, the portion of BART’s 
permanent right-of-way from Mission Road north to the ventilation structure (“Portion of 
District’s Permanent Right-of-Way”), adjacent to Holy Cross Cemetery.  The option 
allowed for a potential future lease agreement between the Town or merchants in the 
area and BART. To date, neither the Town nor the merchants have made use of this 
option. 

With regard to BART’s permanent right-of-way, the City Council also recently approved the 
Mercy Housing Veteran’s Village Project at the November 9, 2016 City Council meeting.  As part 
of that Project, Mercy Housing will be using a portion of the permanent right-of-way for parking 
purposes and ingress and egress. 

ANALYSIS 

The First Amendment to the Agreement accomplishes three main tasks.   

First, upon receipt of an invoice from the Town, BART shall remit to the Town $81,705.00 as 
full compensation for the pavement condition decline to the Town streets attributable to the 
Project construction, as specified in the original Agreement. 



Staff Report First Amendment to BART Comprehensive Agreement  Page 3 of 4 
25977.00100\29627635.1  
 

Second, the Town agrees to accept all Project Features described in the Agreement as 
completed and performed in accordance with the Contract Documents, pursuant to the original 
Agreement.  

Third, BART agrees to continue to provide an option to use a portion of BART’s permanent 
right-of-way for potential merchant parking in the area consistent with the language in the 
original Agreement.  However, because the proposed Mercy Housing Veteran’s Village Project is 
proposing to use a portion of the right-of-way, the Town’s option will be contingent on the 
Veteran’s Village Project.  In the rare event the Veteran’s Village Project does not proceed, the 
Town or merchants would retain the full right to negotiate a future lease agreement with BART 
to use the right-of-way to provide merchant parking in the area. The use of the right-of-way will 
include the existing pavement area, and will allow for the Town to potentially create up to 50 
parking spaces.  As noted previously, the Town has held this right since 1998, but neither the 
Town nor the merchants have sought to make use of this option. 

Reasons For the Recommended Action 

Staff recommends that the Council adopt the resolution approving the First Amendment to 
Comprehensive Agreement, for the following reasons: 

• The First Amendment formally provides for BART’s payment to the Town for the value of 
the pavement condition decline to the Town streets attributable to BART’s Project 
construction, as set forth and required by the original Agreement. 

• The First Amendment provides formal acceptance of the Project Features which the 
Town has been utilizing since completion in 2002. 

• The First Amendment protects the right to exercise the option to enter into a separate 
lease agreement for use of the Portion of District’s Permanent Right-of-Way.  

In addition, Staff finds that the First Amendment is consistent with the purpose and intent of 
the original Agreement and furthers the interests of the Town.  Accordingly, staff recommends 
adoption of the resolution to approve and authorize the First Amendment to the Comprehensive 
Agreement. 

Council Adopted Values 
 
Staff’s recommendation is consistent with the Council’s adopted values of responsibility because 
it ensures certain Project features are accepted, allows for additional revenue to flow to the 
Town for pavement impacts, and ensures the option for merchant parking is protected.   
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to adopt the resolution approving the First Amendment, or 
could propose modifications to the First Amendment.  At a minimum, the City Council should 
approve the First Amendment with or without modifications in order to ensure that outstanding 
issues between the Town and BART are fully addressed. 



Staff Report First Amendment to BART Comprehensive Agreement  Page 4 of 4 
25977.00100\29627635.1  
 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt the resolution approving the First Amendment to the 
Comprehensive Agreement.  

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution  
B. First Amendment 
C. Original Comprehensive Agreement 

 
 



Res. 2017-__, First Amendment to BART Comprehensive Agreement Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\29627625.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING FIRST AMENDMENT TO COMPREHENSIVE 
AGREEMENT WITH THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT 

DISTRICT  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, also known as BART or District, and
the Town of Colma entered into a Comprehensive Agreement dated November 4, 1998 
(“Agreement”) relating to the extension of BART’s tracks south of Colma to the San Francisco 
International Airport and Millbrae (the “Project”).   

(b) Pursuant to the Agreement, the District used certain Town streets during BART 
construction and performed pre-construction and post-construction pavement surveys to 
determine the dollar amount reflecting the decline in pavement condition of the Town’s streets. 
The District determined that the value of the pavement condition decline to Town streets 
attributable to construction was $81,705.00, which has not yet been paid to the Town. 

(c) The Agreement provided that the Town would accept certain completed Project 
Features, in the Town’s usual and customary practice for accepting project features.  While the 
Town has utilized the Project Features since completion in 2002, the Town has not yet provided 
a written acceptance of the Project Features. 

(d) Pursuant to the Agreement, the District also agreed to allow a portion of District’s 
permanent right-of-way from Mission Road north to the ventilation structure adjacent to Holy 
Cross Cemetery, after the District’s completed construction, to be used for parking by 
merchants in the Mission Road area.  The use of the portion of the District’s permanent right-of-
way was to be subject to a separately executed future lease agreement. 

(e) In light of the above facts, BART and the Town have negotiated and agreed to amend 
the Agreement to address these outstanding issues. 

2. Findings.

(a) The City Council finds that entering into the First Amendment is beneficial and in the
best interest of the Town, as it protects and furthers the Town’s right to exercise certain 
options and fulfills certain obligations sets forth in the original Agreement between the Parties. 
The City Council finds that the First Amendment is consistent with the purpose and intent of the 
original Agreement. 

3. Order.

(a) The First Amendment to the Comprehensive Agreement between the San Francisco Bay
Area Rapid Transit District and the Town of Colma, a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, 
is approved by the City Council of the Town of Colma. 

Attachment A



Res. 2017-__, First Amendment to BART Comprehensive Agreement Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\29627625.1  

(b) The Mayor is authorized to execute said contract on behalf of the Town of Colma, with 
such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate by the City Manager and the City 
Attorney. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on May 10, 2017 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel Gonzalez        

Joanne del Rosario       

Diana Colvin      

John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 



25977.00100\29629006.1 - 

FIRST AMENDMENT  

TO  

COMPREHENSIVE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

AND THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RELATING TO THE BART/SFO AIRPORT EXTENSION 

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO COMPREHENSIVE AGREEMENT (“Amended 
Agreement”), is made and entered into this _____ day of ________________, 2017, by and 
between the SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT (“BART” or the 
“District”), and the TOWN OF COLMA (“Town”), (collectively, the “Parties;” each, a “Party”). 

RECITALS 

THIS AGREEMENT is made with reference to the following facts: 

A. The Parties entered into a Comprehensive Agreement on November 4, 1998 
(“Agreement”) relating to the extension of BART’s tracks south from Colma to the San 
Francisco International Airport and Millbrae (“Project”) within the Town limits setting 
forth, among other things, procedures to ensure careful and continued cooperation 
between the Parties for finalizing any necessary design and construction options, 
protecting in place and/or relocating certain Town-owned facilities and utilities, and use 
of Town’s streets for hauling operations during construction; and 

B. The Project required the use of certain Town streets for hauling operations during 
construction of the Project and the Town permitted such use of the streets, provided that, 
pursuant to Section 4.C of the Agreement, BART perform pre-construction and post-
construction pavement surveys in accordance with the December 1988 Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission Pavement Management System Users Guide (“MTC PCI 
Index”) of the Town’s streets which may be affected by construction activities and pay 
the Town the dollar amount reflecting the decline in the pavement condition.  In 2002, 
the District determined that the value of the pavement condition decline to Town streets 
attributable to construction of the Project was Eighty-One Thousand Seven Hundred Five 
Dollars ($81,705.00) (see attached Exhibit 1). In 2004, BART notified the Town of this 
decline in PCI and the dollar amount; and 

C. Among other things, pursuant to Section 7.G of the Agreement, the District agreed to 
allow, after construction, the portion of its permanent right-of-way from Mission Road 

Attachment B



25977.00100\29629006.1 - 
 

north to the ventilation structure (“Portion of District’s Permanent Right-of-Way”), 
adjacent to Holy Cross Cemetery to be used for parking by the merchants in the Mission 
Road area which parking arrangements would be subject to a separate future lease 
agreement among certain parties. 
 
In light of a proposed housing project that is expected to be developed on the adjacent  
property which is located between the Portion of District’s Permanent Right-of-Way and 
Mission Road and is currently owned by the Roman Catholic Arch Bishop of San 
Francisco (“Adjacent Property”), both the Town and the District have discussed and 
agreed to allow the proposed project to include the Portion of District’s Permanent Right-
of-Way as part of the proposed project’s application to the Town for approval. The 
Portion of District’s Permanent Right-of-Way shall be limited in use to providing 
supplemental parking and for purposes of ingress and egress to the Adjacent Property, 
subject to uses by BART for operation and transit purposes.   

At its November 9, 2016 meeting, the City Council of the Town of Colma (“Council”) 
took the following actions to approve the proposed housing project: 

1) Adopted Resolution No. 2016-55 certifying the final environmental impact report 
and adopted findings, a statement of overriding considerations and the mitigation 
monitoring and report program, all pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act for the proposed housing project; 

 
2) Adopted Resolution No. 2016-56, with an effective date of January 14, 2017, 

conditionally approving planned development, conditional use permit, design 
review, sign permit and tree removal permit for the proposed housing project; and 

 
3) Introduced an Ordinance adopting an amended zoning map and approving a 

planned development zone for the proposed housing project which was adopted as 
Ordinance No. 767 on December 14, 2016. 

Notwithstanding any future amendments or revisions the Council may approve and/or 
adopt to the aforementioned Resolutions and Ordinance, in the event that the proposed 
housing project does not proceed as solely determined by the Town, or the Adjacent 
Property is not utilized or ceases to be utilized for the proposed housing project within 
five (5) years from November 9, 2016, the date the Council approved the proposed 
housing project, the District agrees to enter into a separate agreement with the Town to 
lease the Portion of  District’s Permanent Right-of-Way for merchant parking consistent 
with Section III below. 



25977.00100\29629006.1 - 
 

If the Town should issue a Certificate of Occupancy for the housing project, the Town’s 
option to lease the Portion of District’s Permanent Right-of-Way for merchant parking 
under Section III below shall have no force and effect. 

D. Section 9 of the Agreement provides that the Town accept completed Project features, as 
described in Section 6 of the Agreement, or any usable portion thereof which 
appropriately belong to the Town, in accordance “with the Town’s usual and customary 
practice for accepting project features” once it has been determined that the work has 
been performed in accordance with the Contract Documents (“Project Features”).  
Pursuant to Section 9 of the Agreement, BART provided notice to the Town in July 2002 
and February 2004 of the completion of all Project Features described in Section 6 of the 
Agreement.  The Town has utilized these Project Features or any portion thereof 
belonging to the Town since completion of the Project Features in 2002 but has not yet 
provided written acceptance of the Project Features; and 
 

E. The District desires to complete the remaining obligations under the Agreement. In that 
regard, the Parties wish to amend the Agreement on the terms and conditions set forth 
herein. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
I.  The Parties hereby agree that the Recitals are incorporated and made a part of the 

Agreement between the Parties. 
 
II. BART AGREES TO THE FOLLOWING:  

 
A. Upon receipt of an invoice from the Town, BART shall remit Eighty-One Thousand 

Seven Hundred Five Dollars ($81,705.00) to the Town of Colma as full compensation for 
the pavement condition decline to the Town streets attributable to Project construction 
and as fulfillment of obligations set forth in Section 4.C of the Agreement. 

 
III.  THE TOWN AGREES TO THE FOLLOWING:  
 

A. The Town agrees to accept Eighty-One Thousand Seven Hundred Five Dollars 
($81,705.00) as full compensation for pavement condition decline to Town streets 
attributable to Project construction and as fulfillment of the District’s obligations under 
Section 4.C of the Agreement. 

 
In addition, the Town agrees that the Parties will no longer need to enter into a separate 
Memorandum of Understanding pursuant to Section 4.C for disbursement of the funds for 
the pavement condition decline; and 



25977.00100\29629006.1 - 
 

B. Pursuant to Section 9 of the Agreement, the Town agrees to accept all Project Features 
described in Section 6 of the Agreement, or any usable portion thereof which 
appropriately belong to the Town as completed and performed in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 

 
IV.  THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

A. Notwithstanding the five (5) year Qualifying Event under Section IV.B below, if the 
Town should issue a Certificate of Occupancy for the housing project, the Town’s option 
to lease the Portion of District’s Permanent Right-of-Way for merchant parking under 
this Section IV shall have no force and effect. Concurrent with the Certificate of 
Occupancy issuance date by the Town, the Town’s option to enter into a separate 
agreement to lease the Portion of District’s Permanent Right-of-Way for merchant 
parking shall automatically be relinquished and Section 7.G of the Agreement is deleted 
in its entirety. 

 
B. Notwithstanding any future amendments and/or revisions that the Council may approve 

and/or adopt to the aforementioned Resolutions and Ordinance in Recital C above, in the 
event that the proposed housing project does not proceed as solely determined by the 
Town, or the Adjacent Property is not utilized or ceases to be utilized for the proposed 
project within five (5) years from November 9, 2016, the date the Council approved the 
proposed housing project, (collectively defined as a “Qualifying Event”), the Town 
desires, and BART hereby agrees, to provide the Town an option to enter into a separate 
agreement to lease the Portion of District’s Permanent Right-of-Way for merchant 
parking, with BART agreeing to allow the Town the use of the Portion of District’s 
Permanent Right-of-Way including the existing pavement area, and to make parking area 
improvements within the Portion of District’s Permanent Right-of-Way, at the Town’s 
sole cost, for approximately 50 parking spaces and subject to uses by BART for operation 
and transit purposes (“Separate Lease Agreement”), consistent with the original 
Comprehensive Agreement, which shall expressly authorize the Town to sublease or 
otherwise authorize the business merchants in the area to make use of the site for parking 
purposes.  

 
C. The Town shall provide notice to BART of its right to exercise the above option within 

ninety (90) days from the date of the Qualifying Event.  If the Town does not provide 
notice to BART within ninety (90) days of the Qualifying Event, the Town shall be 
deemed to have preliminarily relinquished its right to any option.  Prior to BART closing 
out this Agreement, BART shall provide written notice to the Town, return receipt 
requested, providing an additional 30 days for the Town to confirm the relinquishment of 
its right to the option.  If no response is received by BART from the Town prior to the 



25977.00100\29629006.1 - 
 

expiration of the 30 days, BART shall closeout this Amended Agreement on the 31st day, 
and the Town shall be deemed to have completely relinquished its right to any option. 
 

D. In the event the Town exercises its right to the option, the Town and BART shall have 
one (1) year from the date the option is exercised to enter into a Separate Lease 
Agreement. This Amended Agreement shall be deemed to be closed out concurrently 
with the Town and BART entering into a Separate Lease Agreement or if the Town and 
BART do not enter into a Separate Lease Agreement after the Town exercises it right to 
the option above. 
 

E. SECTION 21: NOTICES of the Agreement is deleted in its entirety, and the following 
Section is substituted in its place: 
 
“SECTION 21: NOTICES 
All notices required hereunder may be given by personal delivery, U.S. mail or courier 
service (e.g. federal express) or telecopier transmission. Notices shall be effective upon 
receipt at the following addresses: 
 

To BART by U.S. Mail:  San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
     P.O. Box 12688 
     Oakland, CA   94604-2688 
     Attn:      General Manager 
     Telefax  (510) 464-6009 
 
     San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
     P.O. Box 12688 
     Oakland, CA   94604-2688 
     Attn:      Department Manager 

        Real Estate and Property Development 
     Telefax  (510) 464-7583 
 

To BART by personal or San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
special delivery:   300 Lakeside Drive, 23rd Floor 

     Oakland, CA   94612 
     Attn:      General Manager 
      
     San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
     300 Lakeside Drive, 22nd Floor 
     Oakland, CA   94612 
     Attn:      Department Manager 

        Real Estate and Property Development 
 
To Town:   Town of Colma 



25977.00100\29629006.1 - 
 

     1198 El Camino Real 
     Colma, CA  94014 
     Attn:      City Manager 

Telefax  (650) 997-8308” 

F. The Agreement is hereby modified and amended pursuant to the terms of this First 
Amendment. 
 

G. The First Amendment may be executed by the Parties in one or more counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which in the aggregate shall constitute 
one and the same documents.   
 

H. In the event of a conflict between the terms and provisions of the Agreement and the 
terms and provisions of this First Amendment, the terms of and provisions of this First 
Amendment shall govern and control.  

 
I. After execution of this First Amendment by the Parties, along with subsequent BART 

payment to the Town for the PCI decline amount, there will not be any remaining or 
outstanding District’s obligations as to the BART SFO Project within the Town pursuant 
to this Amended Agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this First Amendment to 
Comprehensive Agreement to be executed as of the date first above written. 
 
 
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA 
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 

GRACE CRUNICAN 
General Manager 

                
Date: ___________________________ 
  
  
  
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Office of the General Counsel 
 

By: ____________________________ 
BART Attorney 

TOWN OF COLMA 
 
 
      
By: ____________________________ 

SEAN RABÉ 
Town Manager 

       
Date: _________________________  
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Office of the Town Attorney 
 

By: ____________________________ 
City Attorney 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT  1 



Exhibit 1

















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment C









































































































Staff Report – Green Infrastructure  Page 1 of 4 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Michael P. Laughlin, City Planner 
Jonathan Kwan, Assistant Planner 
Katherine Sheehan, NPDES Program Coordinator 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: May 10, 2017 

SUBJECT: Green Infrastructure Plan 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF COLMA TO APPROVE A WORKPLAN TO DEVELOP A 
GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH PROVISION C.3.J OF THE 
MUNICIPAL REGIONAL PERMIT, AND FINDING THE ACTION TO BE EXEMPT FROM 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES 15061(B)(3) AND 15306 

RESOLUTION AMENDING SUBCHAPTER 1.15 OF THE COLMA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 
TO INCLUDE GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE, AND FINDING THE ACTION TO BE EXEMPT 
FROM ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES 15301(C), 15302, 
AND 15303 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Town of Colma is required under the Municipal Regional Permit (MRP) for stormwater to 
develop a Green Infrastructure Plan that demonstrates how the Town will improve storm drain 
infrastructure to manage and reduce pollutants in stormwater runoff. The City/County 
Association of Governments (C/CAG) has developed a Green Infrastructure Workplan for use by 
all jurisdictions in the County.  Staff is recommending that the City Council adopt this workplan 
that includes activities through the year 2020.  In addition, staff is recommending that the City 
Council implement one policy related requirement under the workplan by making a minor 
amendment to the Town’s Administrative Code. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

A short-term cost for Staff is associated with this project as Staff works to develop and 
implement the Workplan for the Green Infrastructure Plan. Long term costs are unknown as the 
amount of pollutant load reduction and number of green infrastructure projects have not been 
determined. C/CAG anticipates initial estimates of public vs. private green infrastructure needs 
for both short- and long-term load reduction requirements will be available to the Town by the 

Item #5



Staff Report – Green Infrastructure   Page 2 of 4 

end of Fiscal Year 16-17. This information will inform overall development of green 
infrastructure plans throughout San Mateo County, impact discussions about long-term 
implementation costs and funding options, and will be discussed in future presentations to the 
City Council as the Town’s Green Infrastructure Plan is developed. The green infrastructure 
projects will most likely be funded on a project basis through the CIP program. 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS 

The San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board’s Municipal Regional Permit (MRP) 
regulates pollutants in stormwater runoff from municipal storm drain systems throughout San 
Mateo, Santa Clara, Alameda, and Contra Costa Counties. Provision C.3.j of the MRP requires 
each jurisdiction subject to the MRP, including the Town of Colma, to develop a Green 
Infrastructure Plan that demonstrates how each jurisdiction will gradually shift from traditional 
“gray” storm drain infrastructure—which channels polluted runoff directly into receiving waters 
without treatment—to a more resilient and sustainable storm drain system comprised of “green” 
infrastructure, which captures, stores and treats stormwater using specially designed landscape 
systems. In addition to managing runoff in a more sustainable fashion, the Green Infrastructure 
Plans must be designed to collectively achieve specific reductions in mercury and 
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) in stormwater runoff by 2020 and 2040, per Provisions C.11 
and C.12 in the MRP. 

The Green Infrastructure Plans must: 

• Include a mapping and prioritization mechanism to identify and prioritize both private 
and public green infrastructure project opportunities; 

• Identify locations and timeframes for implementing green infrastructure, including 
numeric targets for retrofitting impervious areas to achieve mandated pollutant load 
reductions; 

• Utilize a regionally consistent process for tracking and mapping completed projects to 
ensure progress towards meeting the pollutant load reduction targets; 

• Include and/or reference design and construction guidelines and standard specifications 
and details for green infrastructure to guide and enable the completion of projects; 

• Integrate with other planning efforts, including updating relevant plans, policies, codes, 
and ordinances to incorporate green infrastructure for stormwater management to 
support the implementation of project opportunities; 

• Evaluate long-term funding options for design, construction, and long-term operations 
and maintenance, from the Town and other sources; 

• Incorporate any necessary legal mechanisms to enable implementation of the plan and 
projects within and by the Town; and, 

• Include public outreach on development and implementation of the plan. 

The Town’s Green Infrastructure Plan must be developed and submitted to the Water Board in 
September of 2019. In advance of this deadline, the City Council must approve a framework or 



Staff Report – Green Infrastructure   Page 3 of 4 

workplan for developing the plan by June 30, 2017. C/CAG and its consultants have worked 
with the Town to develop model green infrastructure planning materials, including the attached 
Workplan. The Workplan details the various activities necessary for creating a Green 
Infrastructure Plan compliant with MRP requirements, and indicates which aspects of the Green 
Infrastructure Plan will be undertaken by C/CAG and which must be done by the Town.  

One of the tasks is to revise existing planning documents to include Green Infrastructure. 
C/CAG has reviewed Colma’s existing planning policy documents and is recommending that the 
Town revise the Circulation Element, Subchapter 5.11 of the Colma Municipal Code, and 
Subchapter 1.15 of the Colma Administrative Code. The Circulation Element update will follow 
the General Plan Update and be made later. Staff is recommending that the Administrative 
Code Amendment be made now. Staff is recommending waiting on any amendments are made 
to the Municipal Code until the workplan is close to completion.   

In 2013, The Town adopted a Climate Action Plan (CAP).  As an action item of the CAP, the 
Town adopted a Sustainability Policy which is part of the Town’s Administrative Code. This 
policy provides direction for Town purchasing, increasing energy efficiency, decreasing water 
use, green building and reducing waste. It is recommended that the following amendments be 
made to Administrative Code: 

• Under increasing water efficiency and improving water quality, text is recommended to 
be added that will consider the use of permeable paving in the right-of-way. 

• Under increasing water efficiency and improving water quality, text is recommended to 
consider opportunities for green streets infrastructure.  

CEQA Consideration 

Approval of this workplan is exempt from further environmental review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either a direct 
physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the 
environment pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3).  The workplan activities generally include 
mapping potential projects, developing a process to track and map completed projects, and 
developing project guidelines and specifications, which are preliminary to adopting the Green 
Infrastructure Plan. In the alternative, the approval of the workplan is exempt  pursuant to a 
Class 6 categorical exemption (State CEQA Guidelines, § 15306), which consists of basic data 
collection, research, experimental management and resource evaluation activities which do not 
result in a serious or major disturbance to an environmental resource.  The workplan involves 
activities strictly for information gathering purposes and as part of a study that will lead to the 
adoption of a Green Infrastructure Plan which the Town of Colma has not yet approved, 
adopted or funded. 

The addition of Green Infrastructure policies to the Administrative Code could result in the 
construction or installation of green infrastructure improvements such as landscaping, irrigation, 
bioswales, stormwater capture devices, pervious paving and raingardens that will improve the 
water quality of stormwater within existing Town right-of-way or other existing facilities, or 
within new construction, replacement or conversion of small structures.  This action qualifies for 
the Class 1 categorical exemption (CEQA Guidelines Section 15301) for the minor alteration of 
existing public or private structures such as highways, streets, sidewalks, gutters, bicycle and 



Staff Report – Green Infrastructure   Page 4 of 4 

pedestrian trails by adding green infrastructure improvements that would involve no or 
negligible expansion of existing use. The Green Infrastructure policies also qualify for the Class 
2 exemption (CEQA Guidelines Section 15302) because it would involve replacing existing storm 
drainage or pervious surfaces with green infrastructure improvements and would have 
substantially the same purpose and capacity as the structures replaced.  Further, the addition of 
the Green Infrastructure policies qualifies for the Class 3 exemption (CEQA Guidelines Section 
15303)  to the extent new green infrastructure will be incorporated into new construction.   

Council Adopted Values 

The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of vision because it considers the 
future health, safety and welfare of the Town and its residents. 

Sustainability Impact 

The approval of this project provides a workplan to promote the development of green 
infrastructure within the Town, which will result in environmental improvement when projects 
are implemented. Thus, the actions recommended ultimately will have a positive sustainability 
impact.  

Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to not adopt the resolution adopting the workplan.  If this 
action is taken, the Town would need to create an alternative workplan or else be out of 
compliance with Provision C.3.j of the MRP.  This option is not recommended since it could 
result in penalties from the Regional Water Quality Control Board.  

The City Council could also choose to not adopt the resolution amending the Administrative 
Code. While not required at this time, this amendment is an action item of the Workplan in the 
future.  This action is not recommended since the required change is known and will be 
required in the near future. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt the resolution to approve the plan to develop a Green 
Infrastructure Workplan and adopt the resolution amending Subchapter 1.15 of the Colma 
Administrative Code. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution Approving the Workplan for the Green Infrastructure Plan with Exhibit A: 
Workplan for the Green Infrastructure Plan 

B. Resolution Amending the Administrative Code 

 



Res 2017-##, Green Infrastructure Workplan Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF COLMA TO APPROVE A WORKPLAN TO 
DEVELOP A GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

PROVISION C.3.J OF THE MUNICIPAL REGIONAL PERMIT, AND 
FINDING THE ACTION TO BE EXEMPT FROM ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES 15061(B)(3) AND 15306 

1. Background.

(a) The San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board’s Municipal Regional Permit 
(MRP) regulates stormwater discharges from municipal storm drain systems throughout San 
Mateo County, including the Town of Colma. 

(b) Provision C.3.j of the MRP requires each permittee to develop a Green Infrastructure 
Plan that demonstrates how permittees will gradually shift from the traditional “gray” storm 
drain infrastructure which channels polluted runoff directly into receiving waters without 
treatment– to a more resilient and sustainable storm drain system comprised of “green” 
infrastructure, which captures, stores and treats stormwater.  

(c) The MRP also requires that Green Infrastructure Plans be collectively designed to 
achieve specific reductions in mercury and PCBs (polychlorinated biphenyls) within specific time 
horizons. 

(d) All permittees under the MRP are required to approve a workplan for developing a Green 
Infrastructure Plan by June 30, 2017. 

(e) The City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG) has been 
working with the Town of Colma to develop model green infrastructure planning documents, 
including a model workplan. 

(f) The attached workplan (Exhibit A) details the required tasks to develop a Green 
Infrastructure Plan compliant with MRP requirements, including those aspects that will be 
implemented by C/CAG and those by local agencies. 

(g) The Town of Colma is committed to complying with requirements of the MRP. 

2. CEQA

The City Council finds that approval of this workplan is exempt from further
environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a 
potential for resulting in either a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably 
foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment pursuant to CEQA Guideline 
15061(b)(3).  The workplan activities generally include mapping potential projects, developing a 
process to track and map completed projects, and developing project guidelines and 
specifications, which are preliminary to adopting the Green Infrastructure Plan. In the 
alternative, the approval of the workplan is exempt  pursuant to a Class 6 categorical exemption 

Attachment A



Res 2017-##, Green Infrastructure Workplan Page 2 of 2 

(State CEQA Guidelines, § 15306), which consists of basic data collection, research, 
experimental management and resource evaluation activities which do not result in a serious or 
major disturbance to an environmental resource.  The workplan involves activities strictly for 
information gathering purposes and as part of a study that will lead to the adoption of a Green 
Infrastructure Plan which the Town of Colma has not yet approved, adopted or funded. 

Order 

(a) The City Council hereby approves the attached workplan (Exhibit A) for 
developing a Green Infrastructure Plan. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on May 10, 2017 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez 

Joanne F. del Rosario 

John Irish Goodwin 

Diana Colvin 

Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ ___________________________________ 
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

Attest:   ____________________________ 
 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



Date: December 6, 2016 
To: Green Infrastructure Technical Advisory Committee 
CC: Matt Fabry, City/County Association of Governments, SMCWPPP 
From: Phil Erickson and Connie Goldade, Community Design + Architecture, Inc. 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response 

to member agency comments 

Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan 
The	  following	  provides	  an	  annotated	  outline	  for	  the	  development	  of	  each	  Permittee’s	  
Green	  Infrastructure	  Plan	  (GIP)	  Workplan	  (Workplan).	  This	  Workplan	  will	  layout	  the	  
specific	  tasks	  that	  need	  to	  be	  completed	  in	  order	  for	  the	  Permittee	  to	  complete	  the	  
preparation	  of	  the	  various	  components	  of	  the	  Green	  Infrastructure	  Plan,	  and	  the	  
timeline	  for	  their	  completion	  by	  the	  deadlines	  defined	  within	  the	  Municipal	  Regional	  
Stormwater	  NPDES	  Permit	  (MRP).	  

Note	  that	  the	  GIP	  Workplan	  documentation	  is	  to	  be	  submitted	  in	  the	  2017	  Annual	  
Report,	  including	  documentation	  that	  the	  Workplan	  was	  approved	  by	  each	  Permittee’s	  
governing	  body,	  mayor,	  city	  manager,	  or	  county	  manager	  by	  June	  30.	  2017;	  per	  
Provision	  C.3.j.i.(5)	  of	  the	  MRP.	  

Statement of Purpose 
The	  statement	  of	  purpose	  is	  a	  minimum	  requirement	  for	  the	  Workplan	  per	  the	  MRP	  
(Provision	  C.3.j.i.(1)).	  This	  is	  the	  Permittee’s	  statement	  of	  purpose	  for	  their	  GIP	  which	  
could	  be	  derived	  from	  the	  GIP	  purpose	  that	  was	  provided	  by	  the	  Regional	  Water	  Quality	  
Control	  Board,	  in	  response	  to	  comments	  on	  the	  draft	  MRP:	  

The	  Green	  Infrastructure	  Plan	  is	  intended	  to	  describe	  how	  Permittees	  will	  shift	  their	  
impervious	  surfaces	  and	  storm	  drain	  infrastructure	  from	  gray	  (traditional)	  to	  green.	  That	  
is,	  the	  Plan	  should	  describe	  how	  the	  Permittees	  will	  change	  over	  time	  infrastructure	  that	  

NOTE:	  There	  were	  requests	  to	  make	  the	  task	  tables	  in	  this	  memorandum	  more	  
focused	  on	  the	  work	  of	  the	  member	  agency	  staff,	  and	  there	  is	  also	  interest	  in	  
accelerating	  the	  production	  of	  various	  model	  documents	  to	  allow	  member	  agencies	  
more	  time	  for	  customization	  of	  the	  model	  documents	  and/or	  the	  local	  review	  and	  
adoption	  process	  that	  is	  necessary	  for	  completing	  the	  GI	  Plan.	  The	  tables	  in	  the	  
memorandum	  and	  the	  supporting,	  attached,	  timeline	  have	  been	  revised	  to	  reflect	  
these	  requests.	  Tables	  in	  the	  memorandum	  have	  changes	  in	  schedule	  noted	  in	  
[brackets	  and	  highlighted	  in	  yellow].	  Also,	  note	  that	  the	  revised	  schedule	  has	  10	  GI	  
TAC	  meetings	  from	  December	  2016	  to	  August	  2018,	  where	  the	  earlier	  schedule	  had	  
7	  GI	  TAC	  meetings;	  you	  can	  anticipate	  that	  in	  addition	  to	  this	  change	  that	  1	  to	  3	  
more	  GI	  TAC	  meetings	  may	  be	  needed	  to	  maintain	  the	  accelerated	  schedule.	  This	  
would	  mean	  a	  total	  of	  11	  to	  14	  GI	  TAC	  meetings	  from	  now	  to	  August	  2018.	  

ATTACHMENT 2

Exhibit A



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 2 of 14 
 

	  

directs	  runoff	  directly	  into	  storm	  drains	  and	  receiving	  waters	  to	  green	  infrastructure	  that	  slows	  runoff	  by	  
dispersing	  it	  to	  vegetated	  areas,	  harvests	  and	  uses	  runoff,	  promotes	  infiltration	  and	  evapotranspiration,	  
and	  uses	  bioretention	  and	  other	  green	  infrastructure	  practices	  to	  treat	  stormwater	  runoff.	  

Therefore,	  one	  of	  the	  required	  elements	  for	  the	  Plan	  is	  for	  Permittees	  to	  self	  determine	  and	  establish	  
“targets”	  for	  the	  amount	  of	  impervious	  surface	  to	  be	  retrofitted	  with	  green	  infrastructure.	  	  

In	  addition,	  the	  introduction	  to	  Provision	  C.3.j	  states	  what	  the	  Board	  intends	  the	  Green	  Infrastructure	  
Plans	  to	  achieve:	  

“The	  Plan	  is	  intended	  to	  serve	  as	  an	  implementation	  guide	  and	  reporting	  tool	  during	  this	  and	  subsequent	  
Permit	  terms	  to	  provide	  reasonable	  assurance	  that	  urban	  runoff	  TMDL	  wasteload	  allocations	  (e.g.,	  for	  the	  
San	  Francisco	  Bay	  mercury	  and	  PCBs	  TMDLs)	  will	  be	  met,	  and	  to	  set	  goals	  for	  reducing,	  over	  the	  long	  term,	  
the	  adverse	  water	  quality	  impacts	  of	  urbanization	  and	  urban	  runoff	  on	  receiving	  waters.	  For	  this	  Permit	  
term,	  the	  Plan	  is	  being	  required,	  in	  part,	  as	  an	  alternative	  to	  expanding	  the	  definition	  of	  Regulated	  Projects	  
prescribed	  in	  Provision	  C.3.b	  to	  include	  all	  new	  and	  redevelopment	  projects	  that	  create	  or	  replace	  5,000	  
square	  feet	  or	  more	  of	  impervious	  surface	  areas	  and	  road	  projects	  that	  just	  replace	  existing	  imperious	  
surface	  area.	  It	  also	  provides	  a	  mechanism	  to	  establish	  and	  implement	  alternative	  or in-‐lieu	  compliance	  
options	  for	  Regulated	  Projects	  and	  to	  account	  for	  and	  justify	  Special	  Projects	  in	  accordance	  with	  Provision	  
C.3.e.	  

The	  Plan	  shall	  also	  identify	  means	  and	  methods	  to	  prioritize	  particular	  areas	  and	  projects	  within	  each	  
Permittee’s	  jurisdiction,	  at	  appropriate	  geographic	  and	  time	  scales,	  for	  implementation	  of	  green	  
infrastructure	  projects.	  Further,	  it	  shall	  include	  means	  and	  methods	  to	  track	  the	  area	  within	  each	  
Permittee’s	  jurisdiction	  that	  is	  treated	  by	  green	  infrastructure	  controls	  and	  the	  amount	  of	  directly	  
connected	  impervious	  area.	  As	  appropriate,	  it	  shall	  incorporate	  plans	  required	  elsewhere	  within	  this	  
Permit,	  and	  specifically	  plans	  required	  for	  the	  monitoring	  of	  and	  to	  ensure	  appropriate	  reductions	  in	  trash,	  
PCBs,	  mercury,	  and	  other	  pollutants.”	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	   SMCWPPP	  Support	   Timeframe	  

Review	  model	  Statement	  of	  
Purpose	  for	  GIP	  Workplan.	  

Prepare	  model	  
Statement	  of	  Purpose	  
language.	  

January	  2017	  

Develop	  Agency	  Statement	  of	  
Purpose	  for	  GIP	  Workplan.	  

Finalize	  model	  language.	   February	  2017.	  

Adopt/approval	  of	  final	  
statement	  of	  purpose.	  

Support	  per	  member	  
agency	  request.	  

Complete	  by	  adoption/approval	  of	  
member	  agency	  Workplan	  by	  June	  30,	  
2017.	  

	  

Required Green Infrastructure Plan Elements 

A. Prioritization and Mapping of Green Infrastructure Potential and Planned Projects 
This	  work	  covers	  three	  provisions	  for	  the	  Green	  Infrastructure	  Plan	  as	  defined	  in	  the	  MRP:	  



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 3 of 14 
 

	  

•   Provision	  C.3.j.i.(2)(a):	  A	  mechanism	  (e.g.,	  SFEI’s	  GreenPlanIT	  tool	  or	  another	  tool)	  to	  prioritize	  and	  
map	  areas	  for	  potential	  and	  planned	  projects,	  both	  public	  and	  private,	  on	  a	  drainage-‐area-‐specific	  
basis,	  for	  implementation	  over	  the	  following	  time	  schedules,	  which	  are	  consistent	  with	  the	  timeframes	  
for	  assessing	  load	  reductions	  specified	  in	  Provisions	  C.11.	  and	  C.12.	  
(i)	  By	  2020;	  
(ii)	  By	  2030;	  and	  
(iii)	  By	  2040.	  
	  
The	  mechanism	  shall	  include	  criteria	  for	  prioritization	  (e.g.	  specific	  logistical	  constraints,	  water	  quality	  
drivers	  (e.g.	  TMDLs),	  opportunities	  to	  treat	  runoff	  from	  private	  parcels	  in	  retrofitted	  street	  right-‐of-‐
way)	  and	  outputs	  (e.g.	  maps,	  project	  lists)	  that	  can	  be	  incorporated	  into	  the	  Permittee’s	  long-‐term	  
planning	  and	  capital	  improvement	  processes.	  

•   Provision	  C.3.j.i.	  (2)(b):	  Outputs	  from	  the	  mechanism	  described	  above,	  including,	  but	  not	  limited	  to,	  
the	  prioritization	  criteria,	  maps,	  lists,	  and	  all	  other	  information,	  as	  appropriate.	  Individual	  project-‐
specific	  reviews	  completed	  using	  these	  mechanisms	  are	  not	  required	  to	  be	  submitted	  with	  the	  Plan,	  
but	  shall	  be	  made	  available	  upon	  request.	  

•   Provision	  C.3.j.i.	  (2)(c):	  Targets	  for	  the	  amount	  of	  impervious	  surface,	  from	  public	  and	  private	  projects,	  
within	  the	  Permittee’s	  jurisdiction	  to	  be	  retrofitted	  over	  the	  following	  time	  schedules,	  which	  are	  
consistent	  with	  the	  timeframes	  for	  assessing	  load	  reductions	  specified	  in	  Provisions	  C.11.	  and	  C.12.	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	   SMCWPPP	  Support	   Timeframe	  

A.1	  Work	  with	  SMCWPPP	  to	  develop	  GIS-‐based	  modeling	  tool	  for	  use	  in	  mapping,	  prioritizing,	  and	  
phasing	  of	  potential	  and	  planned	  projects.	  

A.1.1	  Provide	  data	  for	  drafting	  of	  San	  Mateo	  
County	  Stormwater	  Resources	  Plan	  (SRP).	  

Prepare	  Draft	  SRP.	  

Work	  began	  in	  the	  second	  half	  
of	  FY	  15-‐16.	  
	  
Draft	  SRP	  review	  complete.	  

A.1.2	  Support	  SMCWPPP	  development	  of	  tool	  
during	  preparation	  of	  the	  Reasonable	  
Assurance	  Analysis	  (RAA)	  to	  address	  mercury	  
and	  PCBs	  TMDL	  implementation.	  

Further	  develop	  tool	  
through	  the	  RAA	  
process.	  

Review	  data	  input	  and	  results	  
of	  tool,	  second	  half	  of	  FY	  16-‐17.	  

A.1.3	  Begin	  using	  web-‐based	  GIS	  tool1	  for	  on-‐
going	  tracking	  of	  GI	  implementation	  and	  to	  
support	  MRP	  annual	  reporting.	  

Support	  per	  member	  
agency	  request.	  

Tool	  to	  be	  available	  in	  second	  
half	  of	  FY	  16-‐17	  for	  on-‐going	  
use.	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

1	  As	  currently	  planned,	  this	  tool	  would	  allow	  for	  viewing	  of	  mapping	  and	  data.	  This	  tool	  will	  be	  accessible	  via	  the	  
internet,	  and	  will	  not	  require	  a	  local	  GIS	  platform	  for	  a	  Member	  Agency	  to	  view	  GIS	  layers.	  



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 4 of 14 
 

	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	   SMCWPPP	  Support	   Timeframe	  

A.2	  Develop	  prioritization	  criteria	  for	  GI	  project	  opportunities.	  

A.2.1	  Review	  preliminary	  criteria	  established	  
as	  part	  of	  the	  SRP.	  

Prepare	  draft	  
preliminary	  criteria.	  

Review	  draft	  SRP,	  task	  
completed	  first	  half	  of	  FY	  16-‐
17.	  

A.3	  Develop	  mapping	  and	  associated	  database	  of	  GI	  project	  opportunities	  with	  information	  needed	  to	  
perform	  a	  prioritization	  assessment	  of	  the	  opportunities.	  

A.3.1	  Review	  methodology	  for	  new	  and	  
redevelopment	  land	  area,	  and	  possible	  
refinements	  to	  public	  property	  and	  public	  
streets	  potential	  for	  GI	  

Develop	  
methodology	  and	  
initial	  land	  area	  
estimate	  

TAC	  review	  in	  December	  2016.	  

A.3.2	  Review	  revised	  estimate	  of	  new	  and	  
redevelopment	  area,	  and	  draft	  any	  
refinements	  to	  property	  and	  public	  streets	  
potential	  

Revise	  land	  use	  
estimate	  

TAC	  review	  in	  February	  2017.	  	  

A.3.1	  Review	  refined	  mapping	  and	  database	  
developed	  through	  the	  RAA,	  if	  needed.	  

Revise	  mapping	  and	  
database,	  if	  needed.	  

Initial	  refinement	  complete	  in	  
Feb/March	  2017.	  Potential	  
additional	  refinement	  finalized	  
by	  June	  2017.	  

A.4	  Develop	  phasing	  plan	  for	  GI	  project	  opportunities	  consistent	  with	  timeframes	  of	  required	  Mercury	  
and	  PCB	  load	  reductions,	  by	  2020,	  by	  2030,	  and	  by	  2040;	  building	  from	  the	  work	  in	  identifying	  potential	  
projects	  to	  achieve	  target	  load	  reductions	  and	  target	  amounts	  of	  impervious	  surface,	  from	  public	  and	  
private	  projects,	  to	  be	  retrofitted	  over	  the	  same	  time	  schedule.	  

A.4.1	  Review	  volume/sediment	  capture	  goals	  
to	  meet	  TMDL	  implementation	  milestones	  
established	  through	  RAA.	  	  

Draft	  capture	  goals.	  
RAA	  finalized	  by	  end	  of	  June	  
2017.	  

A.5	  Define	  the	  methodology	  for	  integration	  of	  the	  GI	  project	  opportunities	  phasing	  plan	  into	  Permittee’s	  
long-‐term	  planning	  and	  capital	  improvement	  plans	  and	  processes.	  This	  should	  include	  projects	  that	  are	  
intended	  to	  be	  implemented	  following	  the	  current	  permit	  term;	  those	  that	  are	  intended	  to	  be	  
implemented	  to	  achieve	  the	  2030	  and	  2040	  load	  reduction	  targets.1	  

A.5.1	  Review	  draft	  model	  methodology.	  
Prepare	  draft	  
methodology.	  

Review	  1st	  quarter	  FY	  17-‐18.	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

1	  The	  workplan	  for	  completion	  of	  prioritized	  projects,	  those	  to	  be	  completed	  by	  2020,	  is	  included	  in	  section	  F	  below,	  
related	  to	  Provision	  C.3.j.i.(2)(j)	  of	  the	  MRP.	  



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 5 of 14 
 

	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	   SMCWPPP	  Support	   Timeframe	  

A.5.2	  Review	  and	  finalize	  model	  methodology.	   Refine	  methodology.	  

Review	  and	  comment	  on	  final	  
draft,	  early	  November	  2017.	  
Accept	  final	  model	  
methodology,	  December	  2017.	  

A.6	  Develop	  and	  integrate	  into	  GI	  Plan	  for	  
adoption.	  

Begin	  2nd	  quarter	  FY	  17/18	  and	  complete	  for	  inclusion	  
in	  Annual	  Report	  submittal	  of	  September	  30,	  2019	  

	  

B. Develop process for tracking and mapping completed projects 
This	  work	  covers	  needs	  of	  Provision	  C.3.j.i.(2)(d)	  of	  the	  MRP:	  

A	  process	  for	  tracking	  and	  mapping	  completed	  projects,	  public	  and	  private,	  and	  making	  the	  information	  
publically	  available.	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	   SMCWPPP	  Support	   Timeframe	  

B.1	  Work	  with	  SMCWPPP	  through	  GI	  TAC	  to	  identify	  
model	  methodology	  for	  mapping	  and	  finalizing	  
database	  information	  for	  projects	  as	  they	  are	  
completed.	  

Develop	  publicly	  
accessible	  element	  of	  
web-‐based	  mapping	  
and	  data	  tool.	  

July	  through	  mid-‐
October	  2017.	  [moved	  
up	  completion	  2-‐½	  
months]	  

B.2	  Identify	  Permittee-‐specific	  department/division	  
responsibilities	  for	  mapping	  and	  finalizing	  database	  
information	  as	  projects	  are	  completed.	  

Support	  per	  member	  
agency	  request.	  

December	  2017	  and	  
February	  2018.	  [moved	  
up	  start	  1	  month]	  

B.3	  Permittees	  implement	  pilot	  period	  of	  mapping	  
and	  database	  management.	  During	  this	  period	  the	  
public	  “portal”	  of	  the	  web-‐based	  mapping	  and	  data	  
tool	  will	  also	  be	  piloted.	  

Support	  per	  member	  
agency	  request.	  

Mid-‐February	  thru	  mid-‐
May	  2018.	  [moved	  up	  
start	  ½	  month]	  

B.4	  	  

Peer	  and	  SMCWPPP	  
review	  of	  pilot	  period	  
mapping	  and	  database	  
revisions.	  

Late	  May	  2018.	  

B.5	  	  
Refine	  web-‐based	  tool	  
for	  use	  by	  member	  
agencies.	  

June	  2018.	  

B.6	  Permittees’	  refine	  and	  implement	  tracking	  
procedures,	  defined	  under	  Item	  A	  above,	  and	  
SMCWPPP	  refines	  the	  public	  “portal”.	  

Support	  per	  member	  
agency	  request.	  

Start	  FY	  18-‐19	  and	  
continue	  through	  
permit	  term	  (December	  
31,	  2020).	  

	  



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 6 of 14 
 

	  

C. Develop overall Green Infrastructure guidelines, standard specifications, and design 
details 
This	  work	  covers	  two	  provisions	  for	  the	  Green	  Infrastructure	  Plan	  as	  defined	  in	  the	  MRP:	  

•   Provision	  C.3.j.i.(2)(e):	  General	  guidelines	  for	  overall	  streetscape,	  and	  project	  design	  and	  construction	  
so	  that	  projects	  have	  a	  unified,	  complete	  design	  that	  implements	  the	  range	  of	  functions	  associated	  
with	  the	  projects.	  …The	  guidelines	  should	  call	  for	  the	  Permittee	  to	  coordinate,	  for	  example,	  street	  
improvement	  projects	  so	  that	  related	  improvements	  are	  constructed	  simultaneously	  to	  minimize	  
conflicts	  that	  may	  impact	  green	  infrastructure.	  

•   Provision	  C.3.j.i.(2)(f):	  Standard	  specifications	  and,	  as	  appropriate,	  typical	  design	  details	  and	  related	  
information	  necessary	  for	  the	  Permittee	  to	  incorporate	  green	  infrastructure	  into	  projects	  in	  its	  
jurisdiction.	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	   SMCWPPP	  Support	   Timeframe	  

C.1	  Work	  with	  SMCWPPP	  through	  GI	  TAC	  to	  develop	  model	  San	  Mateo	  countywide	  guidelines,	  standard	  
specifications,	  and	  design	  details,	  the	  San	  Mateo	  County	  Model	  Green	  Infrastructure	  Guidelines	  and	  
Standards,	  to	  implement	  the	  range	  of	  functions	  associated	  with	  projects,	  such	  as:	  street	  use	  for	  
stormwater	  management	  and	  treatment;	  safe	  pedestrian	  travel;	  use	  as	  public	  space;	  for	  bicycle,	  transit,	  
and	  vehicle	  movement;	  and	  as	  locations	  for	  urban	  forestry.	  These	  will	  also	  include	  identification	  of	  needs	  
and	  model	  procedures	  for	  coordinated	  and	  consistent	  plan	  review	  of	  private	  projects,	  scoping	  and	  design	  
for	  public	  projects,	  provisions	  for	  public/private	  implementation	  and	  maintenance	  agreements,	  and	  
operations	  and	  maintenance.	  

C.1.1	  Review	  model	  guidelines	  and	  standards	  
reference	  documents	  memorandum.	  

Research	  reference	  
documents,	  prepare	  
memorandum.	  

August	  and	  September	  2016	  
Review	  of	  memorandum	  
complete.	  

C.1.2	  Review	  proposed	  reorganization	  of	  model	  
guidelines	  and	  standards	  approach.	  

Prepare	  proposed	  
approach.	  

Feedback	  at	  December	  2016	  
TAC	  Meeting.	  [new	  task]	  

C1.3	  Review	  revised	  scope	  and	  schedule	  for	  
SMCWPPP	  preparation	  of	  model	  document	  

Prepare	  revised	  
scope	  and	  schedule	  

January	  2017.	  [new	  task]	  

C.1.4	  Review	  draft	  samples	  of	  guidelines	  and	  
standards	  sections	  and	  provide	  comments	  to	  
SMCWPPP.	  

Prepare	  draft	  
samples.	  

February	  2017.	  

C.1.5	  Participate	  in	  GI	  TAC	  workshop	  to	  give	  
direction	  on	  approach	  for	  full	  model	  guidelines	  
and	  standards,	  refinements	  to	  approach,	  level	  
of	  detail,	  etc.	  based	  on	  review	  sample	  
guidelines	  and	  standards	  

Facilitate	  GI	  TAC	  
Workshop	  

February	  2017.	  

C.1.6	  Review	  full	  TAC	  draft	  of	  model	  guidelines	  
and	  standards	  and	  provide	  comments	  to	  
SMCWPPP.	  

Prepare	  draft	  model	  
documents.	  

June	  2017.	  [moved	  up	  
completion	  1-‐½	  months]	  



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 7 of 14 
 

	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	   SMCWPPP	  Support	   Timeframe	  

C.1.7	  Approve	  final	  comprehensive	  draft	  of	  the	  
model	  guidelines	  and	  standards.	  

Prepare	  final	  model	  
documents.	  

November	  2017.	  	  
[moved	  up	  3-‐½	  month]	  

C.2	  Revise	  existing	  guidelines,	  standard	  specifications,	  design	  details,	  departmental	  procedures,	  etc.	  as	  
needed	  given	  the	  implementation	  approach	  for	  specific	  Permittees.	  

C.2.1	  Use	  web-‐based	  platform,	  provided	  by	  
SMCWPPP	  as	  jurisdiction	  resource	  for	  revising	  
various	  guidelines	  and	  standards	  documents.1	  	  

Support	  per	  member	  
agency	  request.	  

Nov.	  2017	  thru	  Feb.	  2018.	  
[moved	  start	  up	  4	  months	  and	  
1	  month	  added	  for	  agency	  
efforts]	  

C.2.2	  Provide	  feedback	  to	  SMCWPPP	  regarding	  
utility	  of	  web-‐based	  resource	  platform.	  

Revise	  model	  
documents,	  as	  
needed.	  

By	  end	  of	  February	  2018.	  
[moved	  up	  3	  months]	  

C.2.3	  Finalize	  Permittee	  specific	  development	  
of	  guidelines	  and	  standards;	  Permittees	  may	  
choose	  to	  adopt	  the	  model	  guidelines	  and	  
standards.	  

Support	  per	  member	  
agency	  request.	  

Start	  mid-‐May	  2018	  and	  finish	  
approval/adoption	  by	  
September	  30,	  2019.	  	  
[added	  3	  months]	  

	  

D. Develop requirements for design of projects to meet hydromodification sizing 
requirements or other accepted sizing requirements 
This	  work	  covers	  needs	  of	  Provision	  C.3.j.i.(2)(g)	  of	  the	  MRP:	  

…projects	  be	  designed	  to	  meet	  the	  treatment	  and	  hydromodification	  sizing	  requirements	  in	  Provisions	  
C.3.c.	  and	  C.3.d.	  For	  street	  projects	  not	  subject	  to	  Provision	  C.3.b.ii.	  (i.e.,	  non-‐Regulated	  Projects),	  
Permittees	  may	  collectively	  propose	  a	  single	  approach	  with	  their	  Green	  Infrastructure	  Plans	  for	  how	  to	  
proceed	  should	  project	  constraints	  preclude	  fully	  meeting	  the	  C.3.d	  sizing	  requirements.	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	   SMCWPPP	  Support	   Timeframe	  

D.1	  Work	  through	  SMCWPPP	  and	  its	  GI	  TAC	  to	  coordinate	  with	  the	  BASMAA	  Development	  Committee’s	  
work	  on	  a	  single	  approach	  for	  how	  to	  proceed	  should	  project	  constraints	  preclude	  fully	  meeting	  the	  C.3.d	  
sizing	  requirements.	  	  	  

D.1.1	  Review	  BASMAA	  draft	  recommendations	  on	  
single	  approach,	  not	  related	  to	  hydromodification,	  
through	  SMCWPPP	  GI	  TAC;	  provide	  comments	  to	  
BASMAA	  and	  their	  consultant.	  

Provide	  GI	  TAC	  with	  
comments	  on	  BASMAA	  
draft	  single	  approach.	  

SMCWPPP	  review,	  
est.	  April	  2017.	  
TAC	  review,	  est.	  
May	  2017.	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

1	  The	  concept	  is	  to	  make	  it	  a	  resource	  that	  would	  provide	  access	  to	  the	  model	  language	  documents	  and	  to	  also	  serve	  
as	  a	  clearing	  house	  for	  documents	  that	  are	  prepared	  by	  Member	  Agencies.	  This	  would	  be	  similar	  to	  the	  “21	  
Elements:	  Housing	  Element	  Update	  Kit”	  website	  (21elements.com)	  



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 8 of 14 
 

	  

D.1.2	  Review	  BASMAA	  draft	  recommendations	  on	  
single	  approach,	  related	  to	  hydromodification,	  through	  
SMCWPPP	  GI	  TAC;	  provide	  comments	  to	  BASMAA	  and	  
their	  consultant.	  

Provide	  GI	  TAC	  with	  
comments	  on	  BASMAA	  
draft	  single	  approach.	  

SMCWPPP	  review,	  
est.	  mid-‐March	  thru	  
April	  2018.	  
TAC	  review,	  est.	  
May	  2018.	  

D.1.3	  Integrate	  final	  single	  approach	  from	  BASMAA	  into	  
GI	  Plan.	  

Support	  per	  member	  
agency	  request.	  

Begin	  in	  est.	  August	  
2018.	  

	  

E. Planning document update, summary of updates, and workplan for future plans 
This	  work	  covers	  the	  needs	  of	  two	  provisions	  of	  the	  MRP:	  

•   Provision	  C.3.j.i.(2)(h):	  A	  summary	  of	  the	  planning	  documents	  the	  Permittee	  has	  updated	  or	  otherwise	  
modified	  to	  appropriately	  incorporate	  green	  infrastructure	  requirements…	  Permittees	  are	  expected	  to	  
complete	  these	  modifications	  as	  a	  part	  of	  completing	  the	  Green	  Infrastructure	  Plan,	  and	  by	  not	  later	  
than	  the	  end	  of	  the	  permit	  term.	  

•   Provision	  C.3.j.i.(2)(i):	  To	  the	  extent	  not	  addressed	  above	  [in	  (h)],	  a	  workplan	  identifying	  how	  the	  
Permittee	  will	  ensure	  that	  green	  infrastructure	  and	  low	  impact	  development	  measures	  are	  
appropriately	  included	  in	  future	  plans	  (e.g.,	  new	  or	  amended	  versions	  of	  the	  kinds	  of	  plans	  listed	  
above).	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	  
SMCWPPP	  
Support	  

Timeframe	  

E.1	  Work	  through	  SMCWPPP	  through	  the	  GI	  TAC	  to	  develop	  model	  planning	  document	  update	  language.	  	  	  

E.1.1	  Permittees	  provide	  existing	  planning	  
documents	  to	  SMCWPPP	  for	  review.	  

Document	  and	  
review	  planning	  
documents.	  

Task	  complete.	  

E.1.2	  Review	  draft	  model	  plan	  update	  
materials	  from	  SMCWPPP.	  

Prepare	  model	  
plan	  update	  
report.	  

Begin	  review	  and	  comment	  December	  
2016.	  
Provide	  final	  comment	  in	  2nd	  week	  of	  
January	  2017.	  [delayed	  1	  month]	  

E.1.3	  Begin	  utilizing	  final	  model	  planning	  
update	  materials	  to	  revise	  Permittee-‐
specific	  documents;	  see	  below	  for	  further	  
details.	  

Finalize	  model	  
plan	  update	  
report.	  
Support	  per	  
member	  agency	  
request.	  

June	  2017.	  [simplified	  process	  and	  
moved	  up	  6	  months]	  



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 9 of 14 
 

	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	  
SMCWPPP	  
Support	  

Timeframe	  

E.2	  Make	  modifications	  to	  Permittee-‐specific	  planning	  documents.	  	  	  

E.2.1	  Make	  needed	  modifications	  to	  
planning	  documents	  that	  are	  currently	  
being	  updated	  or	  created,	  for	  other	  
purposes,	  during	  the	  preparation	  of	  
development	  of	  model	  language,	  to	  the	  
extent	  feasible.	  

Support	  per	  
member	  agency	  
request.	  

Work	  of	  priority/in-‐progress	  plans	  can	  
begin	  in	  January	  2017	  using	  draft	  model	  
language	  and	  complete	  for	  inclusion	  in	  
the	  GI	  Plan.1	  

E.2.2	  Draft	  modifications	  or	  updates	  to	  each	  
existing	  planning	  document,	  needing	  this	  
effort,	  to	  appropriately	  incorporate	  green	  
infrastructure	  requirements.	  

Support	  per	  
member	  agency	  
request.	  

Start	  in	  June	  2017	  and	  complete	  with	  
enough	  time	  to	  allow	  for	  public	  review	  
and	  approval/adoption	  process.	  
[Lengthened	  time	  for	  development	  and	  
approval	  by	  6	  months]	  

E.2.3	  Take	  modified	  or	  updated	  planning	  
documents	  through	  necessary	  public	  review	  
and	  approval/adoption	  processes;	  see	  
below	  related	  to	  future	  planning	  
documents.	  

Support	  per	  
member	  agency	  
request.	  

Begin	  in	  Fall	  2017	  (or	  sooner)	  
	  and	  complete	  prior	  to	  end	  of	  the	  
permit	  term	  (December	  31,	  2020).	  
[Lengthened	  time	  for	  development	  and	  
approval	  by	  6	  months]	  

E.3	  Develop	  a	  summary	  of	  planning	  documents	  that	  have	  been	  updated	  or	  modified	  to	  incorporate	  green	  
infrastructure	  requirements	  and	  improvements.	  

E.3.1	  Draft	  summary	  of	  modifications	  made	  
to	  planning	  documents	  as	  they	  move	  
through	  the	  approval/adoption	  process,	  and	  
integrate	  into	  Green	  Infrastructure	  Plan.	  

Support	  per	  
member	  agency	  
request.	  

Begin	  during	  or	  before	  FY	  17-‐18	  and	  
complete	  “these	  modifications	  as	  a	  part	  
of	  completing	  the	  Green	  Infrastructure	  
Plan,	  and	  by	  not	  later	  than	  the	  end	  of	  
the	  permit	  term”.23	  	  

E.4	  Develop	  a	  workplan	  for	  on-‐going	  integration	  of	  language	  to	  incorporate	  green	  infrastructure	  
requirements	  in	  future	  planning	  documents.	  

E.4.1	  Work	  with	  SMCWPPP	  through	  the	  GI	  
TAC	  to	  develop	  model	  language	  for	  
appropriate	  policies	  and/or	  procedures	  to	  
ensure	  language	  is	  integrated	  into	  future	  
documents.	  

Develop	  Model	  
Language.	  

TAC	  review	  April	  2017.	  	  
[moved	  up	  1	  month]	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

1	  GI	  Plan	  is	  to	  be	  completed	  by	  June	  30,	  2019	  and	  submitted	  as	  part	  of	  2019	  Annual	  Report	  by	  September	  30,	  2019,	  
and	  the	  end	  of	  the	  permit	  term	  is	  December	  31,	  2020.	  
2	  Provision	  C.3.j.i.(2)(h)	  of	  the	  MRP,	  page	  46.	  
3	  GI	  Plan	  is	  to	  be	  completed	  by	  June	  30,	  2019	  and	  submitted	  as	  part	  of	  2019	  Annual	  Report	  by	  September	  30,	  2019,	  
and	  the	  end	  of	  the	  permit	  term	  is	  December	  31,	  2020.	  



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 10 of 14 
 

	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	  
SMCWPPP	  
Support	  

Timeframe	  

E.4.2	  Draft	  Permittee-‐specific	  policies	  
and/or	  procedures.	  

Support	  per	  
member	  agency	  
request.	  

Start	  in	  June	  2017	  and	  complete	  with	  
enough	  time	  to	  allow	  for	  public	  review	  
and	  approval/adoption	  process.	  
[Lengthened	  time	  for	  development	  and	  
approval	  by	  6	  months]	  

E.4.3	  Take	  Permittee-‐specific	  policies	  
and/or	  procedures	  through	  necessary	  
public	  review	  and	  approval/adoption	  
processes.	  

Support	  per	  
member	  agency	  
request.	  

Begin	  in	  Fall	  2017	  (or	  sooner)	  and	  
complete	  for	  inclusion	  in	  the	  GI	  Plan.2	  

[Lengthened	  time	  for	  development	  and	  
approval	  by	  6	  months]	  

E.4.4	  Summarize	  Permittee-‐specific	  policies	  
and/or	  procedures	  and	  their	  
approval/adoption	  in	  Permittee’s	  GI	  Plan.	  

Support	  per	  
member	  agency	  
request.	  

Begin	  in	  Fall	  2017	  (or	  sooner)	  and	  
complete	  for	  inclusion	  in	  the	  GI	  Plan.2	  

[Lengthened	  time	  for	  development	  and	  
approval	  by	  6	  months]	  

	  

F. Workplan for completion of prioritized projects 
This	  work	  covers	  needs	  of	  Provision	  C.3.j.i.(2)(j)	  of	  the	  MRP:	  

A	  workplan	  to	  complete	  prioritized	  projects	  identified	  as	  part	  of	  a	  Provision	  C.3.e	  Alternative	  Compliance	  
program	  or	  part	  of	  Provision	  C.3.j	  Early	  Implementation.	  

This	  work	  is	  likely	  primarily	  an	  individual	  member	  agency	  effort.	  But	  potential	  for	  SMCWPPP	  technical	  
support	  will	  be	  determined	  through	  further	  discussions	  with	  the	  Green	  Infrastructure	  TAC	  and	  as	  other	  GI	  
Plan	  and	  MRP	  tasks	  are	  developed	  in	  greater	  detail;	  this	  might	  include	  development	  of	  a	  model	  workplan	  
for	  implementation	  of	  prioritized	  projects.	  Specific	  to	  the	  Alternative	  Compliance	  provision,	  it	  is	  not	  clear	  
at	  this	  point	  which,	  if	  any,	  member	  agencies	  will	  be	  utilizing	  an	  alternative	  compliance	  program.	  This	  will	  
be	  determined	  as	  work	  continues	  on	  other	  tasks.	  	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	   SMCWPPP	  Support	   Timeframe	  

F.1	  Determine	  need	  for	  SMCWPPP	  support	  to	  member	  agencies	  for	  this	  task.	  

F.1.1	  Discussions	  at	  GI	  TAC	  regarding	  
potential	  for	  support	  and	  definition	  of	  
scope,	  if	  needed.	  

Prepare	  for	  and	  facilitate	  
GI	  TAC	  discussions.	  

Discuss	  with	  TAC	  during	  April	  
2017	  TAC	  Meeting.	  	  
[moved	  up	  1	  month]	  



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 11 of 14 
 

	  

F.2	  Preparation	  of	  Permittee-‐specific	  workplan	  to	  complete	  prioritized	  projects.	  

F.2.1	  Develop	  and	  integrate	  into	  GI	  Plan	  for	  
adoption.	  

To	  be	  determined.	  
Begin	  during	  FY	  17-‐18	  and	  
complete	  for	  inclusion	  in	  the	  GI	  
Plan.1	  

	  

G. Evaluation of Funding Options 
This	  work	  covers	  needs	  of	  Provision	  C.3.j.i.(2)(k)	  of	  the	  MRP:	  

An	  evaluation	  of	  prioritized	  project	  funding	  options,	  including,	  but	  not	  limited	  to:	  Alternative	  Compliance	  
funds;	  grant	  monies,	  including	  transportation	  project	  grants	  from	  federal,	  State,	  and	  local	  agencies;	  
existing	  Permittee	  resources;	  new	  tax	  or	  other	  levies;	  and	  other	  sources	  of	  funds.	  

SMCWPPP	  has	  a	  draft	  “Potential	  Funding	  Source	  Analysis	  and	  Recommendations”	  study	  that	  can	  serve	  as	  
a	  starting	  point	  for	  this	  work	  area.	  The	  scope	  of	  this	  effort	  will	  be	  developed	  through	  discussions	  with	  the	  
GI	  TAC.	  This	  might	  include	  consideration	  of	  establishing	  a	  nexus	  to	  support	  implementation	  of	  a	  
stormwater	  infrastructure	  impact	  fee.	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	   SMCWPPP	  Support	   Timeframe	  

G.1	  Determine	  need	  for	  SMCWPPP	  support	  to	  member	  agencies	  for	  this	  task.	  

G.1.1	  Discussions	  with	  GI	  TAC	  regarding	  
potential	  for	  support	  and	  definition	  of	  
scope.	  

Prepare	  for	  and	  facilitate	  
GI	  TAC	  discussions.	  

Discuss	  with	  TAC	  during	  February	  
and	  May	  2017	  TAC	  Meetings.	  

G.1.2	  Begin	  efforts	  on	  this	  work	  item.	   To	  be	  determined.	   Begin	  during	  FY	  17-‐18.	  

G.2	  Preparation	  of	  Permittee-‐specific	  evaluation	  of	  funding	  options	  for	  inclusion	  in	  each	  Permittee’s	  
Green	  Infrastructure	  Plan.	  

G.2.1	  Develop	  and	  integrate	  into	  GI	  Plan	  
for	  adoption.	  

Support	  per	  member	  
agency	  request.	  

Begin	  during	  FY	  17-‐18	  and	  
complete	  for	  inclusion	  in	  the	  GI	  
Plan.2	  

	  

H. Adopt other policies, ordinances, and/or other legal mechanisms to ensure Green 
Infrastructure Plan implementation 
This	  work	  covers	  the	  needs	  of	  Provision	  C.3.j.i.(3)	  of	  the	  MRP:	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

1	  GI	  Plan	  is	  to	  be	  completed	  by	  June	  30,	  2019	  and	  submitted	  as	  part	  of	  2019	  Annual	  Report	  by	  September	  30,	  2019,	  
and	  the	  end	  of	  the	  permit	  term	  is	  December	  31,	  2020.	  
2	  GI	  Plan	  is	  to	  be	  completed	  by	  June	  30,	  2019	  and	  submitted	  as	  part	  of	  2019	  Annual	  Report	  by	  September	  30,	  2019,	  
and	  the	  end	  of	  the	  permit	  term	  is	  December	  31,	  2020.	  



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 12 of 14 
 

	  

(3)	  Adopt	  policies,	  ordinances,	  and/or	  other	  appropriate	  legal	  mechanisms	  to	  ensure	  implementation	  of	  
the	  Green	  Infrastructure	  Plan	  in	  accordance	  with	  the	  requirements	  of	  this	  provision.	  

The	  extent	  of	  this	  work	  is	  undetermined	  at	  this	  point,	  as	  is	  the	  potential	  need	  for	  SMCWPPP	  support	  to	  
member	  agencies.	  The	  scope	  of	  this	  effort	  will	  be	  developed	  through	  discussions	  with	  the	  GI	  TAC.	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	   SMCWPPP	  Support	   Timeframe	  

H.1	  Determine	  need	  for	  SMCWPPP	  support	  to	  member	  agencies	  for	  this	  task.	  

H.1.1	  Discussions	  with	  GI	  TAC	  
regarding	  potential	  for	  support	  and	  
definition	  of	  scope.	  

Prepare	  for	  and	  
facilitate	  GI	  TAC	  
discussions.	  

Discuss	  with	  TAC	  during	  January	  2017	  
and	  May	  2017	  TAC	  Meeting.	  
[moved	  first	  meeting	  out	  1	  month]	  

H.1.2	  Begin	  implementing	  SMCWPPP	  
support	  on	  this	  work	  item.	  

To	  be	  determined.	  
During	  FY	  17-‐18	  in	  coordination	  with	  
development	  of	  draft	  model	  planning	  
update	  materials.	  

H.2	  Preparation	  and	  adoption	  of	  Permittee-‐specific	  policies,	  ordinances,	  and/or	  other	  legal	  mechanisms	  
to	  ensure	  Green	  Infrastructure	  Plan	  implementation.	  	  

H.2.1	  Develop	  and	  integrate	  into	  GI	  
Plan	  for	  adoption.	  

Support	  per	  member	  
agency	  request.	  

Begin	  during	  FY	  17-‐18	  and	  complete	  for	  
inclusion	  in	  the	  GI	  Plan.1	  

I. Conduct outreach and education with public, staff, and elected officials 
This	  work	  covers	  the	  needs	  of	  Provision	  C.3.j.i.(4)	  of	  the	  MRP:	  

(4)	  Conduct	  outreach	  and	  education	  in	  accordance	  with	  the	  following:	  

(a)	   Conduct	  public	  outreach	  on	  the	  requirements	  of	  this	  provision,	  including	  outreach	  coordinated	  with	  
adoption	  or	  revision	  of	  standard	  specifications	  and	  planning	  documents,	  and	  with	  the	  initiation	  and	  
planning	  of	  infrastructure	  projects.	  Such	  outreach	  shall	  include	  general	  outreach	  and	  targeted	  
outreach	  to	  and	  training	  for	  professionals	  involved	  in	  infrastructure	  planning	  and	  design.	  

(b)	   Train	  appropriate	  staff,	  including	  planning,	  engineering,	  public	  works	  maintenance,	  finance,	  
fire/life	  safety,	  and	  management	  staff	  on	  the	  requirements	  of	  this	  provision	  and	  methods	  of	  
implementation.	  

(c)	   Educate	  appropriate	  Permittee	  elected	  officials	  (e.g.,	  mayors,	  city	  council	  members,	  county	  
supervisors,	  district	  board	  members)	  on	  the	  requirements	  of	  this	  provision	  and	  methods	  of	  
implementation.	  

SMCWPPP	  is	  working	  with	  their	  outreach	  consultant	  to	  develop	  a	  Five-‐Year	  Public	  Education	  and	  
Outreach	  Strategic	  Plan	  that	  is	  currently	  in	  draft	  form.	  Elements	  of	  the	  draft	  public	  outreach	  plan	  are	  
currently	  being	  implemented	  such	  as	  distribution	  of	  public	  information	  through	  social	  media,	  newsletters,	  
and	  related	  public	  events	  and	  other	  efforts	  throughout	  the	  county,	  such	  as	  sea	  level	  rise	  planning.	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

1	  GI	  Plan	  is	  to	  be	  completed	  by	  June	  30,	  2019	  and	  submitted	  as	  part	  of	  2019	  Annual	  Report	  by	  September	  30,	  2019,	  
and	  the	  end	  of	  the	  permit	  term	  is	  December	  31,	  2020.	  



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 13 of 14 
 

	  

Training	  of	  member	  agency	  staff	  will	  occur	  through	  GI	  TAC	  meetings	  and	  working	  sessions,	  and	  likely	  
additional	  workshops	  such	  as	  the	  June	  13th	  C.3	  workshop.	  The	  scope	  of	  this	  training	  effort	  and	  education	  
of	  elected	  officials	  will	  be	  further	  developed	  through	  discussions	  with	  the	  GI	  TAC.	  	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	   SMCWPPP	  Support	   Timeframe	  

I.1	  Conduct	  public	  outreach	  through	  the	  efforts	  being	  defined	  in	  the	  Five-‐Year	  Public	  Education	  and	  
Outreach	  Strategic	  Plan.	  	  	  

I.1.1	  Review	  and	  finalize	  the	  Five-‐Year	  Public	  
Education	  and	  Outreach	  Strategic	  Plan.	  

Prepare	  draft	  and	  final	  
strategic	  plan.	  

Begin	  in	  3rd	  quarter	  of	  
FY	  16/17.	  

I.1.2	  Implement	  the	  Five-‐Year	  Public	  Education	  and	  
Outreach	  Strategic	  Plan	  as	  a	  coordinated	  
SMCWPPP	  and	  member	  agency	  effort.	  

On-‐going	  support	  of	  
member	  agency	  efforts.	  
Implementation	  of	  
countywide	  efforts.	  

Currently	  and	  
throughout	  the	  permit	  
period.	  

I.2	  Determine	  scope	  of	  SMCWPPP	  efforts	  in	  supporting	  training	  of	  member	  agency	  staff,	  and	  implement	  
support.	  

I.2.1	  Discussions	  with	  GI	  TAC	  regarding	  potential	  
for	  support	  and	  definition	  of	  scope.	  

Prepare	  for	  and	  facilitate	  
GI	  TAC	  discussions.	  

Discuss	  with	  TAC	  during	  
May	  2017	  TAC	  
Meetings.	  

I.2.2	  Implement	  support	  of	  training	  of	  member	  
agency	  staff.	  

On-‐going	  support	  of	  
member	  agency	  efforts.	  
Implementation	  of	  
countywide	  efforts.	  

Begin	  in	  4th	  quarter	  of	  
FY	  16-‐17.	  

I.3	  Determine	  scope	  of	  SMCWPPP	  efforts	  in	  supporting	  educating	  member	  agency	  elected	  officials,	  and	  
implement	  support.	  

I.3.1	  Discussions	  with	  GI	  TAC	  regarding	  potential	  
for	  support	  and	  definition	  of	  scope.	  

Prepare	  for	  and	  facilitate	  
GI	  TAC	  discussions.	  

Discuss	  with	  TAC	  during	  
May	  2017	  TAC	  
Meetings.	  

I.3.2	  Implement	  support	  of	  education	  of	  member	  
agency	  elected	  officials.	  

On-‐going	  support	  of	  
member	  agency	  efforts.	  
Implementation	  of	  
countywide	  efforts.	  

Begin	  in	  4th	  quarter	  of	  
FY	  16-‐17.	  	  

	  

J. Report on Green Infrastructure Planning Efforts 
This	  work	  covers	  the	  needs	  of	  Provision	  C.3.j.i.(5)	  of	  the	  MRP:	  (5)	  Report	  on	  Green	  Infrastructure	  Planning;	  
and	  several	  other	  provisions	  and	  related	  GIP	  Workplan	  elements	  discussed	  earlier	  in	  this	  outline.	  



Community Design + Architecture 
Re: Revised Final Green Infrastructure Plan Workplan Annotated Outline: in response to member agency comments 
Date: December 6, 2016 
Page 14 of 14 
 

	  

Member	  Agency	  Task	  
SMCWPPP	  
Support	  

Timeframe	  

J.1	  Each	  Permittee	  shall	  submit	  documentation	  in	  the	  
2017	  Annual	  Report	  that	  its	  framework	  or	  workplan	  
for	  development	  of	  its	  Green	  Infrastructure	  Plan	  was	  
approved	  by	  its	  governing	  body,	  mayor,	  city	  manager,	  
or	  county	  manager.	  

Support	  per	  
member	  agency	  
request.	  

Complete	  GIP	  Workplans	  by	  
June	  30,	  2017	  and	  submit	  as	  
part	  of	  2017	  Annual	  Report	  
by	  September	  30,	  2017.	  

J.2	  Each	  Permittee	  shall	  submit	  its	  completed	  Green	  
Infrastructure	  Plan	  with	  the	  2019	  Annual	  Report.	  

Support	  per	  
member	  agency	  
request.	  

Complete	  by	  June	  30,	  2019,	  
and	  submit	  by	  September	  
30,	  2019	  as	  part	  of	  2019	  
Annual	  Report.	  

J.3	  Each	  Permittee	  shall	  submit	  documentation	  of	  its	  
legal	  mechanisms	  to	  ensure	  implementation	  of	  its	  
Green	  Infrastructure	  Plan	  with	  the	  2019	  Annual	  
Report.	  [related	  to	  Provision	  C.3.j.i.(3),	  see	  section	  H	  
above.]	  

Support	  per	  
member	  agency	  
request.	  

Complete	  by	  June	  30,	  2019,	  
and	  submit	  as	  part	  of	  2019	  
Annual	  Report	  by	  September	  
30,	  2019.	  

J.4	  Each	  Permittee	  shall	  submit	  a	  summary	  of	  its	  
outreach	  and	  education	  efforts	  in	  each	  Annual	  Report.	  

Support	  per	  
member	  agency	  
request.	  

Complete	  and	  submit	  by	  
September	  30th	  of	  each	  
permit	  term	  year:	  2016	  
through	  2020.	  

	  



Res 2017-##, Green Infrastructure Workplan Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AMENDING SUBCHAPTER 1.15 OF THE COLMA 
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE TO INCLUDE GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE, AND 

FINDING THE ACTION TO BE EXEMPT FROM ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES 15301(C), 15302, AND 15303 

The Town of Colma City Council does resolve as follows: 

1. Background.

(a) The City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County and its consultants
have worked with the Town to develop model green infrastructure planning materials including 
a workplan for a Green Infrastructure Plan.  

(b) The Town is proposing to amend Section 1.15.060 of the Colma Administrative Code, 
the Sustainability Policy, to include Green Infrastructure, per Task E. of the workplan. 

(c) Notices of public hearing concerning this item were posted at three Town of Colma 
bulletin boards on May 1, 2017. 

(d) A public hearing was held on May 10, 2017. The City Council considered the 
accompanying staff report and all relevant evidence presented at the public hearing. 

2. CEQA

The addition of Green Infrastructure policies to the Administrative Code could result in
the construction or installation of green infrastructure improvements such as landscaping, 
irrigation, bioswales, stormwater capture devices, pervious paving and raingardens] that will 
improve the water quality of stormwater within existing Town right-of-way or other existing 
facilities, or within new construction, replacement or conversion of small structures.  This action 
qualifies for the Class 1 categorical exemption (CEQA Guidelines Section 15301) for the  minor 
alteration of existing public or private structures  such as highways, streets, sidewalks, gutters, 
bicycle and pedestrian trails by adding green infrastructure improvements that would involve no 
or negligible expansion of existing use. The Green Infrastructure policies also qualify for the 
Class 2 exemption (CEQA Guidelines Section 15302) because it would involve replacing existing 
storm drainage or pervious surfaces with green infrastructure improvements and would have 
substantially the same purpose and capacity as the structures replaced.  Further, the addition of 
the Green Infrastructure policies qualifies for the Class 3 exemption (CEQA Guidelines Section 
15303)  to the extent new green infrastructure will be incorporated into new construction.   

3. Administrative Code Amendment Section 1.15.0601

1 Substantive changes have been identified as follows: New text has been underlined; revised text has 
been underlined, without showing the prior wording; and deleted text is shown with a strike-through line. 
Non-substantive changes, such as grammar and formatting are not identified. All markings will be 
removed from the final version that is adopted by the City Council. 

Attachment B



Res 2017-##, Green Infrastructure Workplan   Page 2 of 3 

Sections 1.15.060  of Subchapter 1.15 of the Colma Administrative Code shall be and hereby is 
amended as follows: 
 
1.15.060 Increasing Water Efficiency and Improving Water Quality 
 
(a) Facilities. The Town Sustainability Manager shall commission assessments to increase 

water conservation at Town facilities. The Public Works Director will consider initiating 
upgrades when funds or rebates are available for this purpose. (Further information is 
available at www.bawsca.org/water-conservation/). 

 
(b) Landscaping. The Town Sustainability Manager and the purchaser of landscape 

maintenance services should meet with the Town’s landscaper contractor to encourage 
implementation of provisions of Sustainable Guidelines for Landscape Professionals. 
(Further information is available at www.bayfriendlycoalition.org). The City Planner 
should establish a preferred list of native and drought-tolerant plants. Low water use or 
perennial plants are to be considered over annual plantings. (Further information is 
available at www.bayfriendlycoalition.org). 

 
(c) Permeable Surfaces in Town Projects. When exterior hardscape modifications are made 

to existing Town facilities or when new facilities are built, the Public Works Department 
will consider the replacement of impervious surfaces and replace with permeable 
substitutes such as permeable asphalt, concrete or pavers for walkways, patios, parking 
lots and driveways. In addition, the Town should consider the  use of permeable 
pavement (along with green infrastructure and complete streets improvements) within 
the public right of way when projects are in the planning or design stages. When 
implemented, green infrastructure improvements can help the Town improve water 
quality and attain water quality targets established by the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board. See the guidelines and standards of the Town’s Green Infrastructure Plan 
which is to be adopted in 2019. 

 
(d) Recycled water use. The Public Works Department shall work with the Town’s Sanitary 

Sewer agencies to plan for and establish a reclaimed water system throughout the 
Town. (Further information is available at www.bawsca.org/water-
conservation/recycled-water). 
 

(e) Green Infrastructure Plan and Green Infrastructure Implementation Opportunities. Many 
complete streets elements provide the opportunity to implement green streets 
infrastructure. When new construction or redevelopment of streets and properties are 
being planned and designed, refer to and implement the requirements for regulated 
Municipal Regional Permit projects and consider whether to include the requirements for 
non-regulated projects. See the guidelines and standards of the city’s Green 
Infrastructure Plan, which is to be adopted in 2019.  

 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 



Res 2017-##, Green Infrastructure Workplan   Page 3 of 3 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on May 10, 2017 by the following vote: 
 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Joanne F. del Rosario       

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin      

Voting Tally      

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report Third Amendment to Employment Contract with Sean Rabé  Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\29757551.1
5/1/17  

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: May 10, 2017 

SUBJECT: Second Amendment to Employment Contract with Kirk Stratton 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING SECOND AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH 
KIRK STRATTON 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Pursuant to salary negotiations, the City Manager and the Chief of Police have discussed and 
agreed to a contract modification to the existing employment agreement between the Town 
and Mr. Stratton to address an increase in base salary. As provided for in the second 
amendment to the employment agreement, the base salary will increase from roughly $178,505 
to $185,645. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The City Council’s adoption of the resolution and execution of the third amendment will cause a 
slight financial impact on the Town based on the payment of a higher salary to the Chief of 
Police. This increase has been factored into the 2017/18 budget and can be accommodated in 
the current fiscal year as well.  

BACKGROUND 

On October 8, 2014, the Town entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Stratton to 
serve as the Town’s Chief of Police. On February 10, 2016, the City Council approved the First 
Amendment to the Employment Contract with Mr. Stratton to increase his base salary. 

ANALYSIS 

The proposed second amendment will modify section 3(a), Salary and Benefits, to increase the 
base salary from roughly $178,505 per year to $185,645, an increase of about $7,100 per year. 
The increase is retroactive to December 14, 2016, when salary negotiations first began.  

All other terms and conditions of the employment agreement would remain unchanged. 

Item #6



Staff Report Third Amendment to Employment Contract with Sean Rabé   Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\29757551.1  
5/1/17  

Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to adopt the resolution and choose not to execute the second 
amendment. Doing so is not recommended as the City Manager and Mr. Stratton are both in 
agreement on this modification and the City Council has directed this modification to the 
agreement. 

CONCLUSION 

The City Council should adopt the resolution approving the second amendment to the 
employment agreement with Mr. Stratton. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution  
B. Second Amendment 
C. First Amendment 
D. Original Employment Contract 

 
 



Res. 2017-__, Approving Second Amendment to Employment Contract with Kirk Stratton Page 1 of 2 
25977.00120\29755322.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-__ 
Of the City Council of the Town of Colma 

RESOLUTION APPROVING SECOND AMENDMENT TO 
EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH KIRK STRATTON 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) On October 8, 2014, the City Council entered into an Employment Contract with Kirk
Stratton to serve as the Town’s Chief of Police. 

(b) On February 10, 2016, the City Council approved the First Amendment to the 
Employment Contract with Kirk Stratton to increase his base salary retroactive to November 12, 
2015, the date when salary negotiations began and the performance review was completed.  

(c) The City Council now seeks to further amend the Chief of Police’s contract to increase 
his base salary, subject to approval of a Second Amendment to the Employment Contract. Such 
increase shall be retroactive to December 14, 2016, when salary negotiations began.  

2. Order

(a) The Second Amendment to the Employment Contract between the Town of Colma and
Kirk Stratton, a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, shall be and hereby is approved by 
the City Council of the Town of Colma. 

(b) The Mayor shall be, and hereby is, authorized to execute this Second Amendment on 
behalf of the Town of Colma, with such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate 
by the Mayor and the City Attorney. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on May 10, 2017 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

Raquel Gonzalez 

Joanne del Rosario 

Diana Colvin 

John Irish Goodwin 

Voting Tally 

Attachment A



Res. 2017-__, Approving Second Amendment to Employment Contract with Kirk Stratton Page 2 of 2 
25977.00120\29755322.1  

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 



Second Amendment to Employment Contract with Kirk Stratton Page 1 of 1 
25977.00120\29755294.1  

SECOND AMENDMENT TO  
EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH KIRK STRATTON 

This Second Amendment is made and entered into by and between the Town of Colma, a 
municipal corporation and general law city (“Employer”), and Kirk Stratton (“Employee”), who 
are sometimes individually referred to as a "Party" and collectively as "Parties" in this Second 
Amendment. For reference purposes, this Second Amendment is dated May 10, 2017. 

1. Recitals. This Second Amendment is made with reference to the following facts:

(a) On October 8, 2014, Employer and Employee entered into an Employment 
Contract (“Contract”) for Employee to serve as Chief of Police.

(b) On February 10, 2016, the City Council approved the First Amendment to the 
Employment Contract with Kirk Stratton to increase his base salary retroactive to
November 12, 2015, the date when salary negotiations began and the performance
review was completed (“First Amendment”).

(c) Employer and Employee now desire to enter into this Second Amendment to
further increase Employee’s base salary. Such increase shall be retroactive to December
14, 2016, when salary negotiations began.

NOW, THEREFORE, BASED ON THE MUTUAL PROMISES AND CONSIDERATION
CONTAINED IN THIS FIRST AMENDMENT AND THE CONTRACT, THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE 
AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Subsection (a) of Section 3, “Salary” of the Contract is hereby modified as
follows:

(a) Salary. Employer shall pay Employee a salary of $185,645.76 per year, or such
greater amount as may hereafter be approved by the City Council, which shall be paid at
the same time and in the same manner as salaries are usually paid to Miscellaneous
Employees of the Town.

Execution. In Witness thereof, the parties hereto have signed this Second Amendment on the 
respective dates shown below and this Second Amendment, along with the First Amendment 
and the Contract constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties. 

Dated ___________________ _________________________________ 
 Kirk Stratton, Employee 

Dated: __________________ TOWN OF COLMA (Employer) 

By _______________________________ 
 Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment D













Staff Report Third Amendment to Employment Contract with Sean Rabé  Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\29757551.1
5/1/17  

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

MEETING DATE: May 10, 2017 

SUBJECT: Third Amendment to Employment Contract with Sean Rabé 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THIRD AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH 
SEAN RABÉ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Pursuant to City Council negotiations, the City Council and the Town’s City Manager have 
discussed and agreed to a contract modification to the existing employment agreement 
between the Town and Mr. Rabé to address an increase in base salary. As provided for in the 
third amendment to the employment agreement, the base salary will increase from roughly 
$190,000 to $199,508. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The City Council’s adoption of the resolution and execution of the third amendment will cause a 
slight financial impact on the Town based on the payment of a higher salary to the City 
Manager. This increase has been factored into the 2017/18 budget.  

BACKGROUND 

On December 11, 2013, the Town entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Rabé to 
serve as the Town’s City Manager. On February 11, 2015, the Town entered into a first 
amendment to the employment agreement to provide for an increase in base salary and to 
address a majority change on the City Council. On March 26, 2016, the Town entered into a 
second amendment with regard to severance. 

ANALYSIS 

The proposed third amendment will modify section 4(a), Salary and Benefits, to increase the 
base salary from roughly $190,000 per year to $199,508, an increase of a little less than 
$10,000 per year. The increase, per the City Manager’s original employment contract, is 
retroactive to January 1, 2017.  

Item #7



Staff Report Third Amendment to Employment Contract with Sean Rabé   Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\29757551.1  
5/1/17  

All other terms and conditions of the employment agreement would remain unchanged. 

Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to adopt the resolution and choose not to execute the third 
amendment. Doing so is not recommended as the City Council and Mr. Rabé are both in 
agreement on this modification and the City Council has directed this modification to the 
agreement. 

CONCLUSION 

The City Council should adopt the resolution approving the third amendment to the employment 
agreement with Mr. Rabé. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution  
B. Third Amendment 
C. Second Amendment 
D. First Amendment 
E. Original Employment Contract 

 
 



Res. 2017-__, Third Amendment to Employment Contract with Sean Rabé Page 1 of 2 
25977.00120\29757421.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THIRD AMENDMENT TO 
EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH SEAN RABÉ 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) On December 11, 2013, the City Council entered into an employment contract with Sean
Rabé to serve as the Town’s City Manager. 

(b) On February 11, 2015, Employer and Employee entered into a First Amendment to the 
Contract in order to increase base salary and to address a majority change on the City Council. 

(c) On March 23, 2016, Employer and Employee entered into a Second Amendment to the 
Contract to address the severance provision. 

(d) The City Council now seeks to further amend the City Manager’s contract to address an 
increase in base salary, subject to approval of an amendment to the employment contract. Such 
increase shall be retroactive to January 1, 2017, per the City Manager’s original employment 
contract.  

2. Order

(a) The Third Amendment to the employment contract between the Town of Colma and
Sean Rabé, a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, shall be and hereby is approved by the 
City Council of the Town of Colma. 

(b) The Mayor shall be, and hereby is, authorized to execute this Third Amendment on 
behalf of the Town of Colma, with such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate 
by the Mayor and the City Attorney. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on May 10, 2017 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

Raquel Gonzalez 

Joanne del Rosario 

Diana Colvin 

John Irish Goodwin 

Attachment A



Res. 2017-__, Third Amendment to Employment Contract with Sean Rabé  Page 2 of 2 
25977.00120\29757421.1  

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 

 



Third Amendment to Employment Contract with Sean Rabé Page 1 of 2 

25977.00120\29757415.1  

THIRD AMENDMENT TO  
EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH SEAN RABÉ 

This Third Amendment is made and entered into by and between the Town of Colma, a 
municipal corporation and general law city (“Employer”), and Sean Rabé (“Employee”), who are 
sometimes individually referred to as a "Party" and collectively as "Parties" in this Third 
Amendment. For reference purposes, this Third Amendment is dated May 10, 2017. 

1. Recitals. This Third Amendment is made with reference to the following facts:

(a) On December 11, 2013, Employer and Employee entered into an Employment 
Contract (“Contract”) for Employee to serve as City Manager.

(b) On February 11, 2015, Employer and Employee entered into a First Amendment
to the Contract in order to increase base salary and to address a majority change on the
City Council.

(c) On March 23, 2016, Employer and Employee entered into a Second Amendment 
to the Contract to address the severance provision.

(d) Employer and Employee now desire to enter into this Third Amendment to
further increase the base salary as provided herein. Such increase shall be retroactive to
January 1, 2017, per the City Manager’s original employment contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, BASED ON THE MUTUAL PROMISES AND CONSIDERATION
CONTAINED IN THIS THIRD AMENDMENT AND THE CONTRACT, THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE 
AS FOLLOWS: 

2. Subsection (a) of Section 4, “Salary and Benefits,” of the Contract is hereby
modified as follows:

(a) Salary. Employer shall pay Employee a salary of $199,508.40 per year, or such
greater amount as may hereafter be approved by the City Council, which shall be paid at
the same time and in the same manner as salaries are usually paid to Miscellaneous
Employees of the Town.

\

\

\

\

\

\

Attachment B



Third Amendment to Employment Contract with Sean Rabé Page 2 of 2 
 
25977.00120\29757415.1  

Execution. In Witness thereof, the parties hereto have signed this Third Amendment on the 
respective dates shown below and this Third Amendment, along with the Second and First 
Amendment and the Contract constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties. 

 
Dated ___________________  _________________________________ 
            Sean Rabé, Employee 

 

Dated: __________________  TOWN OF COLMA (Employer) 

 
      By _______________________________ 
            Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

 



Attachment  C





Attachment D





Attachment E















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


	05.10.17 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Minutes - 04.26.17
	2. Report of Checks Paid - April
	3. TLC Grant Application
	A. Resolution
	B. LSR Reso No. 2016-51

	4. First Amendment to BART Comprehensive Agreement
	A. Resolution
	B. First Amendment
	Exhibit 1

	C. Original Agreement

	5. Green Infrastructure Plan
	A. Resolution - Green Infrasture Plan Work Plan
	Exhibit A - Green Infrastructure Workplan

	B. Resolution - Admin Code Update

	6. Second Amendment to Employment Contract with Kirk Stratton
	A. Resolution
	B. Second Amendment
	C. First Amendment
	D. Original Contract

	7. Third Amendment to Employment Contract with Sean Rabe
	A. Resolution
	B. Third Amendment
	C. Second Amendment
	D. First Amendment
	E. Original Contract




